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SHARJAH INSURANCE

Board of Directors’ Report
The Board of Directors of Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C. has the honor to disclose the

audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024. The following is a

summary of the results of the Company’s operations for the year ended 31 December 2024:

First: Insurance activity:

Under the guidance of the Board of Directors of the Company to maintain profits achieved in
the past couple of years, the Company has continued a conservative underwriting policy to

select the business according to the technical results reached as follows:

Operational results:

= Total insurance service revenue for 2024 amounted to AED 32.1 million compared to
insurance service revenue of AED 21.5 million for 2023. The insurance service
expenses for 2024 amounted to AED 88 million compared to insurance service
expenses AED 14.8 million in 2023.

- A net insurance service result of AED (8.2) million for the year ended 31 December
2024 as compared to net insurance service result of AED (1.5) million for the year

ended 31 December 2023 (the “Previous Year").

Second: Investinent Activiry:

% Investment profits for the year 2024 amounted to AED 16 million compared to AED
15.4 million in 2023.

® As per the statement of cashflows, The Company acquired financial assets through
profit or loss amounted to AED 18.1 million during the year compared to 25.3 million
in 2023 and sold financial assets through profit and loss and financial assets through
other comprehensive income amounted to AED 19.7 million and AED 1.1 million

compared to AED 24.1 million and AED 2.6 million in 2023, respectively.
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The Company's net profit for the year 2024 amounted to AED 5.26 million compared to

net profit of AED 16.21 million for the year 2023.

The main objective of the Company's Board of Directors and its executive management is to
maintain and develop the economic entity to the benefit of the country, the citizens, and the
investors. Therefore, we are committed to be in the ranks of the competitive company's
professionality and committed to apply the highest standards of quality and management

governance to meet the requirements of transparency and disclosure.

= The Company renewed the Reinsurance agreements for 2025 on technical basis to
ensure the continuation of the underwriting performance and expansion of its

operations.

Finally, I would like to thank the Board of Directors and employees for their efforts and hope
Y proy P

areater cfforts to be done to continue the successful journey.

Yours faithfully,

Ahmed Mohamed Hamad Al Midfa

KoY
Chairman -
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Shareholders of Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C (the “Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the statement of profit or loss,
statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present faitly, in all material respects the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
yeat then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Boatd (IASB)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further desctibed in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with Inzernational Ethics Standards
Board for Acconntants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including international independence standards)
(“IESBA Code”), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements of IESBA code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide 2
sepatate opinion on these mattets.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

IKey Audit Matter

Valuation of Reinsurince Contract Assets and Insurance Congract Liabilities

Flow our audit addressed the key audit matter

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s
reinsurance contract assets and insurance
contract liabilides ate valued at AED 69.8
million, and AED 90.9 million respectively
(Refer to note 10).

Valuation of these reinsurance contract assets
and insurance liabilities involves significant
judgements and estimates, particularly with
respect to the eligibility of measurement models
and the estimation of the present value of future
cash flows.

These cash flows pdmarily include the
determination of expected premium receipts,
expected ultimate cost of claims and allocation of
insurance acquisiion cash flows, which are
within the contract boundaries.

The calculation for these liabilities includes
significant estimation and involvement of
actuarial experts in order to ensure the
approptiateness of discount rates, methodology,
assumptions and data used to determine the
estimated present value of future cash flows.

As a result of the above factots, we considet the
valuation of treinsurance contract assets and
liabilities as a key audit matter.

We

petformed the following procedutes in

conjunction with our actuarial specialists:

Understood and evaluated the process, the
design and implementation of controls in
place to determine valuation of Insurance
contract liabilities and Reinsurance contract
assets;

Assessed the competence, capabiliies and
objectivity of the management's appointed

actuary;

Tested the completeness, and on sample basis,
the accuracy and relevance of data used to
determine future cashflows;

Evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology,  significant  assumptions
including risk adjustment, PAA eligibility
assessment, discount rates and expenses
included within the fulfilment cashflows. This
included consideration of the reasonableness
of assumptions against actual historical
experience and the appropriateness of any

judgments applied;

Independently reperformed the caleulaton to
assess the mathematical accuracy of the
Insurance contract liabilities and Reinsurance
Contract Assets on selected classes of
business, particularly focusing on largest and
most uncettain reserves; and

Evaluated and tested the calculation of the
allowance for expected credit loss allowance
and the key assumptions and judgments used.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

[Sey Audit Matter

Valuation of invesoment properiies

As at 31 December 2024, the Company owns a
portfolio of investment properties amounting to
AED 57.1 million (2023: AED 54.1 million)
which. comptising commercial properties,
residential properties, and land. The Company
recotded a net fair value gain in the statement of
profit or loss amounting to AED 2.9 million
during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
AED 0.96 million) (refer to Note 7).

These investment properties are stated at their
fair values as determined by independent real
estate valuers engaged by the Company (“the
valuers”™)., The valuation process involves
significant judgements in determining and
estimating the underlying assumptions to be
applied.

These investment properties represent 16% of
the total assets and the valuations are highly
sensitive to key assumptions applied in deriving
at the significant unobservable inputs, and a small
change in the assumptions can have a significant
impact on the valuation.

How our audit addressed the key audit
M lenr

Our audit procedures, among others, included: |

- We obtained the valuation assessment
report prepared by the external valuers;

- We evaluated the external valuers
qualifications, expetience and expertise in
the investment properties being valued
and  considered their  objectivity,
independence and scope of wotk;

- We assessed whether the wvaluation
methods used are in accordance with the
established standards for valuation of the
properties and determining the fair value;

- We involved our independent external
valuation specialists to review the
valuation methodologies, key assumptions
and critical judgements wused for
significant properties by comparing these
with market data, or other publicly
available information, on selected
properties; and

- On sample basis, we tested, whether
property specific data provided to the
external valuers by management reflected
the undetlying property records.
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Independent Auditot’s Report
To the Shareholders of Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Other Information

The Boatd of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, out responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the othet information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appeats to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have petformed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that thete is 2 matetial misstatement of this other information, we are required to repott that fact. We
have nothing to repott in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS Accounting standards as issued by the IASB and their preparation in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021 and Federal Law No. (48) of 2023, and for such internal
control a5 management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue 2s a going concetn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
out opinion. Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assutance but is not a guarantee that an andit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a matetial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can atise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those fisk, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ertor,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the overtide
of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedutes that ate approprate in the circumstances, but not for the putpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosutes are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue as a ngﬂg concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undetlying transactions and events
in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govermance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify duting our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those mattets that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current Year and ate therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these mattets in our auditor’s report unless law and regulations preclude
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare citcumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Shatjah Insurance Company P.S.C. (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, we report that for the year ended 31
December 2024:

i) We have obtained all the information and explanation we considered necessary for the purposes of
our audit;

i The financial statements have been prepated and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable
provisions of the UAE Fedetal Law No. 32 of 2021;

1if) The Company has maintained proper books of account in accordance with the established accounting
principles;

iv) The financial information included in the Directors’ report is consistent with the books of account of
the Company;

v) Investments in shares during the year ended 31 December 2024, are disclosed in note 8 to these
financial statements;

vi) Note 23 to the financial statements discloses material related party transactions and balances, and the
terms under which they were conducted;

vii) The Company has not made any social contributions during the financial year ended 31 December
2024; and

vii) ~ Based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention which
causes us to believe that the Company has contravened during the financial year ended
31 December 2024 any of the applicable provisions of the Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, ot its Articles
of Association, which would materially affect its activities or its financial position as at 31 Decembet
2024.

Furthet, as requited by the UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023, we report that we have obtained all the
information and explanations we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit.

GRANT THORNTON UAz

P.O. Box: 1963
Sharjah - U A E.

Dr. Osama El Bakry
Registration No: 935
Sharjah United Arab Emirates

24 March 2025



Sharjah Insurance Company P.5.C.
Financial statements

Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2024

Assets

Property and cquipment

Intangible assets

Investments propertics

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI)

Statutory deposits

Reinsurance contract asses

[nsurance conrrace assets

Prepayments and other receivables

Tnvestments at fair value through profir or loss (FVTPL)

Bank balances and cash

Total asscts

Equity and liabilities

Capital and reserves

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Voluntary reserve

Reinsurance reserve

Cumulative changes in fair value of FVTOCI investments
Retained carnings

Total equity

Liabilitics

Provision for employees” end of service
indemniry

Insurance contract liabilitics

Reinsurance contract linbilities

Orther payables

Lease liabilides

Bank overdrafis

Deferred rax liabilitcs

Total liabilitics

Total equity and liabilitics

Ahmed Mohamed Hamad Almidfa
Chaitman

Notes

82
12

11
142
14.3

15
10
10
16

19

25

2024 2023
AED AED
1,986,479 376,160
82,248 89,290
57,058,000 54.068,6606
39,810,338 36,662,639
10,000,000 7,300,000
69,840,903 24,096,820
2,235,785 2,705,758
4,160,488 5,259 817
141,207,139 139,334,825
35,589,361 31,390 310
361,970,741 31H 884,285
150,000,000 130,000,000
56,932,703 36,431,823
30,000,000 301,000,000
525,687 393,969
(110,339,069) (115,.800.115)
124,468,612 130,140,188
251,587,933 233165867
1,159,310 964,350
90,916,833 39027515
7,635,326 3667118
8,700,014 2424523
1,382,076 31.865
- 2,578,269
589,249 =
110,382,808 48,715,418
361,970,741 301,884,285

"The accompanying notes rom 1 ro 36 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Shartjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statement

Statement of profit or loss
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Insurance revenue
Insutance service expenses

Insurance setvice result before reinsurance contracts
held

Allocation of reinsurance premiums
Amounts recoverable from reinsurance for incurred claims

Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held

Insurance service result

Investment and other income

Change in fair value of investment properties

Net investment income

Finance (expense)/income from insurance contracts issued
Finance income/(expense) from reinsurance contracts held

Net insurance finance expense

Net insurance and investment results

Genetal and administrative expenses
Finance cost
Other operating (expense)/income

Profit for the year before tax
Taxation

Profit for the year after tax

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Notes

20
21

B R

24

25

18

2024 2023

AED AED
32,070,002 21,461,395
(88,007,074)  (14,764,483)
(55,937,072) 6,696,912
(26,108,927) (19,876,109
73,821,247 11,723,013
47,712,320 (8,153 096)
(8,224,752)  (1,456,184)
16,027,720 15,403,009
2,989,334 964,311
19,017,054 16,367,320
(1,746,647) 825,646
1,41L,121  (1,160,775)
(335,526)  (335,129)
10,456,776 14,576,007
(3,470,417)  (2,200,303)
(108,747)  (136,403)
(1,621,869)  3.967,359
5,255,743 16,206,660
(246,948) -
5,008,795 16,206,660
0.03 0.11

The accompanying notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Statement of other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Profit for the year after tax

Other comprehensive income:

Items thar will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:

Net change in fair value of equity instruments designated at
FVTOCI — net of tax

Gain on sale of equity instruments designated at FTVOCI
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total Comprehensive Income
For the Year

2024 2023
AED AED
5,008,795 16,206,660
3,461,044 1,720,730
452,227 526,544
3,913,271 2,247,274
8,922,066 18,453,934

The accompanying notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Notes 2024 2023
AED AED

Operating activities
Profit for the year before tax 5,255,743 16,206,660
Adjustments:
Depreciation of property and equipment 5 784,093 749,580
Amortization of intangible assets 6 42,242 65,999
Provision for employee’s end of service benefit 15 245,470 176,720
Provision for ditectors’ remuneration 24 1,720,000 700,000
Fair value change on investment propettes T (2,989,334) (964,311)
Investment and other income, net 22 (16,027,720) (15,403,009)
Gain on sale of property and equipment (1,896)
Finance costs 108,747 136,403
Operating cash flow before change in working capital (10,862,655) 1,668,042
Change in working capital:
Net reinsurance contract assets (41,775,875) (2,208,563)
Net insurance contract liabilities 52,359,491 2,226,403
Prepayments and other receivables 1,099,329 (3,548,763)
Other payables 5,525,491 869,961
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 6,345,781 (992,920)
Employees’ end of service benefit paid 15 (55,490) (64,120)
Directors’ remuneration paid (970,000) (700,000)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities 5,320,291 (1,757,040)
Investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment 5 (120,496) (18,510)
Purchase of intangible assets 6 (35,200) (81,880)
Proceeds from disposal of assets 1,905 -
Purchase of investments designated at FVTPL 8.3 (18,130,288) (25,328,723)
Proceeds from sale of investments designated at FVTOCI 1,107,876 2,571,444
Proceeds from sales of investments designated at FVTPL 19,708,968 24,120,348
Increase in fixed deposit with bank 5,000,000 (15,000,000)
Dividend income received 22 9,303,799 8,253,425
Income from investment properties 7 3,063,499 2,788,277
Interest income received 494,640 288,813
Other (expense)/income 22 (85,212) 1,763
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 20,309,491 (2,405,043)
Financing activities
Finance costs paid (61,929) (106,707)
Lease liabilities paid (790,533) (1,209,466)
Dividend paid (10,500,000) (17,381,589)
Net cash used in financing activities (11,352,462)  (18,697,762)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents during the year 14,277,320 (22,859,845)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 11,312,041 34,171,886
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 19 25,589,361 11,312,041
Non-cash transactions, net
Dividend in kind 22 1,896,000 =
Addition - right-of-use assets 5 2,073,924 12,611
Addition - Lease liabilities 2,073,924 (12,611)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

13



Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. Legal status and activities

Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C. - Sharjah (the "Company") is incorporated as a public shareholding
company by an Amiri Decree issued by His Highness, the Ruler of Sharjah on 8 March 1970. The Company
is subject to the regulations of UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023 (previously Federal Law No. 6 of 2007,
as amended), on Establishment of Insurance Authority and Organization of its Operations and is registered
in the Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the U.AE. (“CBUAE”) (formerly Insurance
Authority of U.A.E.) under registradon No.12. The Company operates through its head office in Sharjah
and has Company in Dubai and Ajman. The address of the Company’s registered office is P.O. Box 792,
Sharjah, United Arab Emirates.

The principal activity of the Company is dealing in general insurance, property, non-property insurance,
and life insurance.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the tequirements of the applicable laws

and regulations, including UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021, The Company’s otdinaty shates are listed
on Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange, United Arab Emirates.

On Aptil 16, 2024, the United Arab Emirates expetienced an extraordinary bout of heavy rainfall, leading
to significant disruptions throughout the country. As a consequence, the Company faced a surge in claims,
totalling 677 cases and amounting to AED 52.04 million. Of this total, AED 49.12 million is expected to
be recoverable through reinsurance.

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”)
New standards, interpretations and amendments applied on the financial statements.

The following relevant standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards were issued by the
IASB:

Standard number Title Effective date
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current —

IAS1 Amendments to TAS 1 1 January 2024

IAS 7 Financial Instrument: Disclosures — Supplier finance 1 January 2024

arrangements s
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback — Amendments to IFRS
16

These standards have been adopted by the Company and did not have a material impact on these financial
statements.

IFRS 16 1 January 2024

Standards issued but not yet effective

The impact of the new standards, interpretations and amendments that are issued, but not yet effective, up
to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements ate disclosed below. The Company intends
to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Standard number Title Effective date

IAS 21 Amendment to IAS 21 - Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
Amendment to IFRS 9 and 7— Amendments to the Classification

IFRS 9 and 7 and Measurement of Financial Instruments 1 January 2026

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without public accountability — Disclosures 1 January 2027
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Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3. Statement of compliance with IFRS

This financial statement is for the year ended 31 December 2024 and is presented in Arab Emirate Dirtham
(AED), which is also the functional currency of the Company. The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Intetnational Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) promulgated by International
Accounting Standard Board (1ASB) and interpretations thereof issued by the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (“IFRS IC”) and in compliance with the applicable requirements of the United Arab Emirates
(UAE) Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021 (“Companies Law”), relating to commercial companies and
United Arab Emirates (UAE) Federal Law No. (48) of 2023 concerning Financial Regulations for Insurance
Companies issued by the CBUAE and regulation of its operations

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial assets carried
at fair value through other comprehensive income, investment properties, and financial assets carried at fair
value through profit and loss which are catried at fair value and the provision for employees’ end of service
indemnity which is calculated in line with UAE labour laws.

The Company’s statement of financial position is not presented using a current / non-current classification.
However, the following balances would generally be classified as current: Cash and cash equivalents,
prepayments and other receivables, bank overdraft, and other payables. The following balances would
generally be classified as non-current: property and equipment, intangible assets, investment properties,
investment at FVTPL, and statutory deposit. The following balances are of mixed nature (including both
current and non-cutrent portions): financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income,
reinsurance contract assets, insurance contract assets, insurance contract liabilities, reinsutrance contract
liabilities, leases, bank balances and fixed deposits and provision for employees’ end of service indemnity.

4. Material accounting policies

The accounting policies, critical accounting judgments and key source of estimation used in the preparation
of these financial statements are consistent with those used in the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023, except for application of new standards effective as of 1 January 2024 and several
amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2024.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Insurance and reinsurance contracts classification

The Company issues insurance contracts in the normal course of business, under which it accepts significant
insurance risk from its policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has
significant insurance tisk, by comparing benefits payable after an insured event with benefits payable if the
insured event did not occut. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment
Separating components from insurance and reinsurance contracts

The Company assesses its insurance and reinsurance products to determine whether they contain distinct
components which must be accounted for under another IFRS instead of under IFRS 17. After separating
any distinct components, the Company applies IFRS 17 to all remaining components of the (host) insurance
contract. Cutrently, the Company’ products do not include any distinct components that require separation.
Some reinsurance contracts issued contain profit commission arrangements. Under these arrangements,
there is a minimum guaranteed amount that the policyholder will always receive — either in the form of
profit commission, or as claims, or another contractual payment irrespective of the insured event
happening. The minimum guaranteed amounts have been assessed to be highly interrelated with the
insurance component of the reinsurance contracts and are, therefore, non-distinct investment components
which are not accounted for separately. However, receipts and payments of these investment components
are recognised outside of profit or loss.
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Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. Material accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment (continued)
Level of aggregation

IFRS 17 requires 2 Company to determine the level of aggregation for applying its requirements. The
Company previously applied aggregation levels under IFRS 4, which were significantly higher than the level
of aggregation required by IFRS 17. The level of aggregation for the Company is determined firstly by
dividing the business written into pottfolios. Portfolios comptise groups of contracts with similar risks
which are managed together. Portfolios are further divided based on expected profitability at inception into
three categories: onerous contracts, contracts with no significant risk of becoming onerous, and the
remainder. This means that, for determining the level of aggregation, the Company identifies a contract as
the smallest ‘unit’, ie., the lowest common denominator. However, the Company makes an evaluation of
whether a series of contracts need to be treated together as one unit based on reasonable and supportable
information, or whether a single contract contains components that need to be separated and treated as if
they were stand-alone contracts. As such, what is treated as a contract for accounting purposes may diffet
from what is considered as a contract for other purposes (i.c., legal or management). IFRS 17 also notes
that no group for level of aggregation purposes may contain contracts issued more than one year apart.

The Company has elected to group together those contracts that would fall into different groups only
because law, regulation ot intetnal policies specifically constrains its practical ability to set a different price
or level of benefits for policyholders with different charactetistics. The Company applied a full retrospective
approach for transition to IFRS 17, The portfolios are further divided into groups of contracts by quarter
of issue and profitability for recognition and measurement purposes.

Hence, within each quarter of issue, portfolios of contracts are divided into three groups, as follows:

* A group of contracts that are onerous at initial recognition (if any)

* A group of contracts that, at initial recognition, have no significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently (if any)

* A group of the remaining contracts in the portfolio (if any)

The profitability of groups of contracts is assessed by profitability committee that take into consideration
existing and new business. The Company assumes that no contracts in the portfolio are onerous at initial
recognition unless facts and circumstances indicate otherwise. For contracts that are not onetous, the
Company assesses, at initial recognition, that there is no significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently by assessing the likelihood of changes in applicable facts and circumstances.

The Company has a Profitability Assessment Committee that meets at regular intetvals to determine the
profitability groupings of each portfolio of contracts. The committee acts as a forum to collect input from
the pricing and underwriting functions and assess the relevant facts and circumstances which indicate that
groups of contracts are onerous at initial recognition.

Below are some of the relevant facts and circumstances that the Company considers:

*  Evaluation of expected combines ratios;

*  Pricing information;

*  Results of similar contracts it has recognized; and

*  Environment factors, e.g., a change in market experience or regulations.

The Company divides portfolios of reinsurance contracts held applying the same principles set out above,
except that the refetences to onerous contracts refer to contracts on which there is 2 net gain on initial
recognition. For some groups of reinsurance contracts held, a group can comptise a single contract.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. Material accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment (continued)

Recognition

The Company recognizes gtoups of insutance contracts it issues from the earliest of the following:

*  The beginning of the coverage period of the group of contracts;

*  The date when the first payment from a policyholder in the group is due or when the first payment is
received if there is no due date;

*  For a group of onerous contracts, if facts and circumstances indicate that the group is onerous the
Company recognizes a group of reinsurance contracts held:

= If the reinsurance contracts provide proportionate coverage at the later of the beginning of the
coverage period of the group, or the initial recognition of any underlying contract; and

*  In all other cases, from the beginning of the coverage period of the group The Company adds new
contracts to the group when they are issued or initiated.

Contract boundary

The Company includes in the measurement of a group of insurance contracts all the future cash flows
within the boundary of each contract in the group. Cash flows are within the boundary of an insurance
contract if they atise from substantive rights and obligations that exist during the reporting year in which
the Company can compel the policyholdert to pay the premiums, or in which the Company has a substantive
obligation to provide the policyholder with service.

A substantive obligation to provide services ends when:

*  The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular policyholder and, as a
result, can set a price ot level of benefits that fully reflects those risks; or

Both of the following criteria are satisfied:

*  The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio of insurance contracts that
contain the contract and, as a tesult, can set a price ot level of benefits that fully reflects the risk of

that portfolio; and
*  The pricing of the premiums for coverage up to the date when the risks are reassessed does not take

into account the risks that relate to periods after the reassessment date.

A liability or asset relating to expected premiums ox claims outside the boundary of the insurance contract
is not recognised. Such amounts telate to future insurance contracts.

Measurement - Premium Allocation Approach
Insurance contracts ~ initial measurement

The Company applies the premium allocation approach (PAA) to all the insurance contracts that it issues
and reinsurance contracts that it holds, as:

*  'The coverage period of each contract in the group is one year or less, including coverage arising from
all premiums within the contract boundary. Or

*  For contracts longer than one year, the Company has modelled possible future scenatios and
reasonably expects that the measurement of the liability for remaining coverage for the group
containing those contracts under the PAA does not differ materially from the measurement that would
be produced applying the general model. In assessing materiality, the Company has also considered
qualitative factors such as the nature of the risk and types of its lines of business.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

4. Material accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment (continued)
Measurement - Premium Allocation Approach (continued)

Insurance contracts — initial measurement (continued)

The Company does not apply the PAA if, at the inception of the group of contracts, it expects significant
variability in the fulfilment cash flows that would affect the measurement of the liability for the remaining
coverage during the period before a claim is incurred. Variability in the fulfilment cash flows increases with:

¢ The extent of future cash flows related to any derivatives embedded in the contracts.
*  The length of the coverage period of the group of contracts.

For a group of contracts that is not onerous at initial recognition, the Company measures the liability for
remaining coverage as the premiums, if any, received at initial recognition, minus any insurance acquisition
cash flows at that date, with the exception of contracts which are one year or less where this is expensed,
plus or minus any amount arising from the derecognition at that date of the asset or liability recognised for
insurance acquisition cash flows that the Company pays ot teceives before the group of insurance contracts
is recognised. There is no allowance for time value of money as the premiums ate mostly received within
one year of the coverage period.

The Company measutes its reinsurance assets for a group of reinsurance contracts that it holds on to the
same basis as insurance contracts that it issues, however, adapted to reflect the features of reinsurance
contracts held that differ from insurance contracts issued, for example the generation of expenses or
teduction in expenses rather than revenue.

Insurance contracts — subsequent measurement
The Company measutes the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage at the end of each
reporting year as the liability for remaining coverage at the beginning of the year:

*  Plus, premiums received in the year;

*  Minus capitalized insurance acquisition cash flows;

= Plus, any amounts relating to the amortization of the acquisition cash flows recognized as an expense
in the reporting year for the group;

*  Plus, any adjustment to the financing component, where applicable;

*  Minus the amount recognized as insurance revenue for the coverage petiod; and

*  Minus any investment component paid or transferred to the liability for incurred claims.

The Company estimates the liability for incurred claims as the fulfilment cash flows related to incurred
claims. The fulfilment cash flows incorporate, in an unbiased way, all reasonable and supportable
information available without undue cost or effort about the amount, timing and uncertainty of those future
cash flows, they teflect current estimates from the perspective of the entity and include an explicit
adjustment for non-financial risk (the risk adjustment). The Company does not adjust the furure cash flows
for the dme value of money and the effect of financial risk for the measurement of liability for incurred
claims that are expected to be paid within one year of being incurred.

Insurance acquisition cash flows are allocated on a straight-line basis as a portion of premium to profit or
loss (through insurance revenue).
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4. Material accounting policies (continued)

IERS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment (continued)

Reinsurance contracts
The subsequent measurement of reinsurance contracts held follows the same principles as those for
insurance contracts issued and has been adapted to reflect the specific features of reinsurance held.

Insurance contracts — modification and derecognition
The Company derecognizes insurance contracts when:

* The rights and obligations relating to the contract are extinguished (i.e., discharged, cancelled or
expired); or

*  The contract is modified such that the modification results in a change in the measurement model or
the applicable standard for measuring a component of the contract, substantially changes the contract
boundaty, or requires the modified contract to be included in a different group. In such cases, the
Company derecognizes the initial contract and recognizes the modified contract as a new contract,

When a modification is not treated as a detecognition, the Company recognizes amounts paid ot received
for the modification with the contract as an adjustment to the relevant liability for remaining coverage.

Presentation

The Company has presented separately, in the statement of financial position, the catrying amount of
groups of insurance contracts issued that are assets, groups of insurance contracts issued that are liabilities,
reinsurance contracts held that are assets and groups of reinsurance contracts held that are liabilities.

Any assets ot liabilities for insurance acquisition cash flows recognized before the corresponding insurance
contracts ate included in the catrying amount of the related groups of insurance contracts issued.

The Company disaggregates the total amount recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income into an insurance service result, comprising insurance revenue and insurance setvice
expense, and insurance finance income or expenses.

The Company disaggregates the change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk between a financial and
non-financial portion which will be presented in insurance finance income or expenses and in insurance
service result respectively. The Company separately presents income or expenses from reinsurance
contracts held from the expenses or income from insurance contracts issued.

Insurance revenue

The insurance revenue for the yeat is the amount of expected premium receipts (excluding any investment
component) allocated to the year. The Company allocates the expected premium receipts to each period of
coverage on the basis of the passage of time; but if the expected pattern of release of risk during the
coverage period differs significantly from the passage of time, then on the basis of the expected timing of
incutred insurance service expenses.

The Company changes the basis of allocation between the two methods above as necessaty, if facts and
circumstances change. The change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

For the years presented, all revenue has been recognised on the basis of the passage of time.

Loss components

The Company assumes that no contracts are onerous at initial recognition unless facts and circumstances
indicate otherwise. If at any time during the coverage period, the facts and citcumstances indicate that a
group of insurance contracts is onerous, the Company establishes a loss component as the excess of the
fulfilment cash flows that relate to the remaining coverage of the group over the carrying amount of the
liability for temaining coverage of the group. Accordingly, by the end of the coverage petiod of the group
of contracts the loss component will be zero.
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4, Material accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Insurance and reinsurance contracts accounting treatment (continued)
Insurance finance income and expense

Insurance finance income or expenses comptise the change in the carrying amount of the group of
insurance contracts arising from:

*  The effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of money; and
¢ The effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk.

The Company disaggregates insurance finance income or expenses between profit or loss and OCI. The
impact of changes in market interest rates on the value of the insurance assets and liabilities are reflected in
OClI in order to minimise accounting mismatches between the accounting for financial assets and insurance
assets and liabilities. The Company” financial assets are also measured at FVT'OCI.

Net income or expense from reinsurance contracts held

The Company presents separately on the face of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the amounts expected to be recovered from reinsurers, and an allocation of the reinsurance
premiums paid.

The Company treats reinsurance cash flows that are contingent on claims on the underlying contracts as
patt of the claims that are expected to be teimbursed under the reinsurance contract held and excludes
investment components and commissions from an allocation of reinsurance premiums presented on the
face of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Insurance contracts
Definition, recognition and measnrement

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those contracts that
transfer significant insurance risk.

Insurance contracts are classified into two main categoties, depending on the duration of risk and whether
ot not the terms and conditions are fixed

Shori-term insurance contracts

These contracts are medical, motor, property, engineering and short-duration life insurance contracts.

Medical insurance contracts protect the Company’s customers against the risk of incurring medical expenses.
Medical selection is part of the Company’s underwriting procedures, whereby contributions are charged to
reflect the health condition and family medical histoty of the applicants. Pricing is based on assumptions,
such as persistency, which consider past experience and current trends. Contracts including specific risks
and guarantees are tested for profitability according to predefined procedures before approval.

Engineering Insurance is an insurance policy that covers a wide range of engineering telated risks. It is a
comprehensive insurance that provides complete protection against risks associated with erection, resting,
and wotking of any machinery, plant or equipment.

Motor insurance comprises Comprehensive Insurance and Third-Party Insurance. Comprehensive
Insurance covers the policy holder for any loss or damage to the policy holder’s vehicle caused either by
themselves or a third party. It also covers any third party for loss or damage caused by the policy holder.
Third Party Insurance, on the other hand only covers the third party for any loss of damage caused by the
policy holder.
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4. Material accounting policies (continued)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Insurance contracts (continued)

Shori-term insurance contracts (continsed)

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers for damage suffered to their
properties or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commercial activities on their
premises could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the insured
propetties in their business activities (business interruption cover).

Shott-dutation life insutance contracts (credit life) protect the Company’s customers from the consequences
of events that would affect the ability of the customer or customer’s dependents to maintain their current
level of income. Guaranteed benefits paid on occurrence of the specified insurance event are either fixed or
linked to the extent of the economic loss suffered by the policyholder. There is no maturity or surrender
benefits.

Products are reviewed by the business units on an annual basis to confitm, or otherwise, that pricing
assumptions remain approptiate. Analysis is performed on earnings and liability movements to understand
the soutce of any matetial variation in actual tesults from what was expected. This confirms the
appropriateness of assumptions used in underwriting and pricing.

Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserves correspond to the provision representing future claim
expenses and related handling costs that are not case specific. It represents all other expenses and costs that
are related to the adjudication of claims but cannot be assigned to a specific claim and is calculated based
on recommendation of Company’s external actuatial valuation report.

Reinsutrance contracts

Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company is compensated for losses
on one or mote contracts issued by the Company and that meet the classification requirements for insurance
contracts ate classified as reinsurance contracts. Contracts that do not meer these classification requirements
are classified as financial assets. Insurance contracts enteted into by the Company under which the contract
holder is another insurer are included with insurance contracts. The benefits to which the Company is
entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance contract assets. These assets
consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on
the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts
recoverable from ot due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance
liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense when
due. The Company assesses its reinsurance contract assets for impairment on a regular basis. The Company
gathers the objective evidence that a reinsurance asset is impaired using the same process adopted for
financial assets held at amortised cost. The impairment loss is also calculated following the same method
used for these financial assets.

Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities towards outstanding claims are made for all claims intimated to the Company
and still unpaid at the end of the reporting year, in addition for claims incurred but not reported.

The reinsurers’ portion of the above outstanding claims and unearned premium is classified as reinsurance
contract assets in the financial statements.

Salvage and subrogation resmbursements

Estimates of salvage and subrogation reimbursements are considered as an allowance in the measurement
of the insurance liability for claims.
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4. Material accounting policies (continued)
Insurance contracts (continued)

Liabifity adequacy test
At the end of each reporting year, the Company assesses whether its recognised insurance liabilities are
adequate using current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If that assessment

shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light of estimated future cash
flows, the entire deficiency is immediately recognised in income and an unexpired risk provision is created.

Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These include amounts due to and from agents, brokers
and insurance contract holders. The Company gathers the objective evidence that an insurance receivable
is impaired using the same process adopted for financial assets cartied at amortized cost. The impairment
loss is also calculated under the same method used for these financial assets.

Conmmission earned and incnrred

Commissions and other acquisition costs that are related to secuting new contracts and renewing existing
contracts are charged to profit or loss when incutred. The Company recognise commissions received from
reinsurance premium ceded as commission income in the year in which premium was ceded to the

reinsurets.

Revenue recognition
Insurance contract incone

Revenue from insurance contracts is measured under revenue recognition criteria stated under insurance
contracts in these financial statements (Note 4 under insurance contracts).

Inferest incone

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend incone

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company’s rights to receive payment have been
established.

Rental incomie

Rental income from investment property which are leased under operating leases are recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Foteign currencies

The financial statements of the Company are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the financial
statements, the results and financial position of the Company are expressed in Arab Emirates Dithams
(“AED”), which is the functional cutrency of the Company and the presentation currency for the financial
statements.

In prepating the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s
functional cutrency (foreign cutrencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting year, monetatry items denominated in foreign currencies ate
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetaty items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign cutrencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign cutrency ate not rettanslated.
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4. Material accounting policies (continued)

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan

U.A.E. national employees of the Company are membets of the Government-managed retirement pension
and social security benefit scheme putsuant to U.A.E. Labout law no. 7 of 1999. The Company is required
to contribute 12.5% of the “contribution calculation salary” of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme
to fund the benefits. The employees and the Government conttibute 5% and 2.5% of the “contribution
calculation salary” respectively, to the scheme. The only obligation of the Company with respect to the
retirement pension and social security scheme is to make the specified contributions. The contributions are
charged to Statement of profit or loss.

Annual leave and leave passage

An accrual is made for the estimated liability for employees' entilement to annual leave and leave passage
as a result of services tendered by eligible employees up to the end of the yeat.

Provision for eniployees’ end of service indemnity

Provision is also made for the full amount of end of setvice indemnity due to non-U.A.E. national
employees in accordance with the U.A.E. Labour Law and is based on current remuneration and their period
of service at the end of the reporting year. The accrual relating to annual leave and leave passage is disclosed
as a current liability, while the provision relating to end of service indemnity is disclosed as a non-current
liability.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method proportionately. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The gain ot loss arising on the disposal or tetirement of an item of property and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the catrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
Statement of profit or loss.

The useful lives considered in the calculation of depreciation for all the assets are 4 - 5 years. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated over the lease term of 5 years.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and identified impairment losses, if any.
Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting year, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful lives considered in the
calculation of amortisation is 4 yeats.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation including properties
under construction for such purposes. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects matket conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties ate included in the statement of income in the year in which they arise. Fair value is
determined by an external independent valuator.
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4. Material accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the statement
of income/loss in the year of retitement or disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents are within the scope of IFRS
9 expected credit loss calculations for the assessment of impairment.

Fixed deposits

Fixed deposits ate deposits held with banks with original maturities of mote than three months, which are
initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Fixed deposits are within the
scope of IFRS 9 expected credit loss calculation for the assessment of impairment.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting yeat, the Company reviews the catrying amounts of their tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. Recoverable amount is the
higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of profit ot loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in the Statement of profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is catried at a tevalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions

Provisions ate recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not recognised for futute operating losses.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting Year, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. When some or all of the
economic benefits requited to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received, and the
amount of the treceivable can be measured reliably.
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Equity
Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Statutory reserve is required to be created by UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021 as described in
Note 14.1.

As per Articles of Association, voluntary reserve can be created upon a recommendation of the Board of
Directors Note 14.2.

Reinsurance reserve is required to be created in accordance with Insurance Authority’s Board of Directors’
Decision No. 23 Article 34 of 2019 as described in Note 14.3.

. Retained earnings include curtent year profit and all prior years retained profits.

Leases
Company as lessee

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right of use asset and a lease liability on the
statement of financial position. The right of use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to
dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease
commencement date (net of any incentives received).

The Company depreciates the right of use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company
also assesses the right of use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. At the commencement date,
the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest.
It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, ot if thete ate changes in in-substance fixed

payments.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right of-use asset, or
profit and loss if the right of use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical
expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

On the statement of financial position, right-of-use assets have been included in property and equipment
and lease liabilities have been included in as 2 separate line item as lease liabilites.

Company as lessor

As a lessor the Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying
asset and classified as an operating lease if it does not.
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Financial Instruments

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, and are initially measuted at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL). Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets classified as at FVIPL are recognised immediately in
Statement of profit or loss.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the Company’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Specifically:

(@ debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI), are subsequently measured at amortised cost;

(i) debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that
are SPPI, are subsequently measuted at fair value through other comprehensive income (FIVOCI);

(iii) all other debt instruments (e.g. debt instruments managed on a fair value basis or held for sale} and
equity investments ate subsequently measured at FVIPL. However, the Company may make the
following irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a financial asset on an asset-by-
asset basis:

a. the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies, in other comprehensive income (OCI); and

b. the Company may irrevocably designate a debt instrument that meets the amortised cost
or FVTOCI critetia as measured at FVIPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair value option).

Cash and bank and other receivables

Cash and bank, and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-
term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial
instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter petiod, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The future cash flows are estimated taking
into account all the contractual terms of the instrument.
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Cash and bank and other receivables (continued)

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that
are incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts. For financial assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss at
initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)

Investments in equity instruments ate classified as at FVITPL, unless the Company designates an investment
that is not held for trading as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) on initial
tecognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL ate measured at fait value at the end of each reporting yeat, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in statement of income. Fair value is determined in the manner

described in note 22.

A financial asset is held-for-trading if:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; ot

* oninitial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages
together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

* itis a detivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividend income on investments in equity instruments at FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss when the
Company's right to receive the dividends is established in accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of patt of the cost of the investment.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

At initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis)
to designate investments in equity instruments as at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Designation at fair value through other comprehensive income is not permitted if the equity investment is
held for trading,

Investments in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cumulative
changes in fair value in equity. When the FVTOCI-equity instruments are disposed of, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the cumulative changes in fair value in equity is not reclassified to profit
or loss but is treclassified to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company's
tight to receive the dividends is established in accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue.
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Reclassifications

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected
are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply
prospectively from the first day of the first reporting year following the change in business model that
results in reclassifying the Company’s financial assets. During the cusrent financial year and previous
accounting year, there was no change in the business model under which the Company holds financial
assets and therefore no reclassifications were made.

Impairment

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an expected credit loss model (ECLs). The
Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on bank balances including statutory and
fixed deposits and insurance and other receivables that are not measured at FVTPL.

No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

With the exception of purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) financial assets {(which are considered
separately below), ECLs are required to be measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to;

. 12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the financial insttument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date, (teferred to as Stage 1); or

. full lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the

financial insttument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).
A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial

instrument has incteased significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial instraments, ECLs are
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL.

The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for bank balances including statutory and fixed
deposits, insurance and other receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Loss allowance for financial investments measured at amortised costs are deducted from gross carrying
amount of assets.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue costs or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

For certain categoties of financial assets that are assessed not to be impaited individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Company’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio as well as observable changes in national ot local economic conditions

that correlate with default on receivables.

Impairment losses related to bank balances including statutory and fixed deposits and insurance and other
receivables are presented in the Statement of profit or loss.

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to
the globally undetstood definidon of the grade of the investment.
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Measurement of ECL

The Company considers broader range of information when assessing the credit risk, and measuring
expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that
affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument. In applying this forwatd-looking
approach, a distinction is made between:

e  Financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
or that have low credit risk. (Stage 1); and

®  Financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition and
whose credit risk is not low. (Stage 2)

Stage 3 would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. The
Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when their credit risk rating is equivalent to the
globally understood definition of “investment grade”.

12-month expected credit loss are recognized for the first category (Stage 1) while “ lifetime expected credit
losses” are recognized for the sccond category (Stage 2). Measurement of the expected credit losses is
determined by a probability - weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the financial
instrument.

The Company makes use of a simplified apptroach in accounting for insurance receivables and for other
receivables records lifetime expected credit loss. These are expected shortfalls in the contractual cashflows,
considering the potential for default at any point during the life of a financial instrument. In calculating, the
Company uses its historical experience, external indicators and forward-looking information to calculate the
expected credit losses using a provision matrix,

The Company assesses impairment of insurance receivables on a collective basis as they possess shared
credit risk characteristics, they have been grouped based on the days past due.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or mote events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. At each reporting date, the Company
assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized costs are credit impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewatds of ownetship and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained
intetest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues
to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost or measured at FVIPL, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received, and receivable is recognised
in Statement of profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset that is classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the cumulative changes in fair value of securities resetve is not reclassified to Statement of
profit or loss but is reclassified to retained earnings.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are tecorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as ‘other financial liabilities’.

Otbher financial liabilities

Insurance and other payables and bank overdrafts are classified as ‘other financial liabilities” and are initially
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield
basis except fot shott term payable when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

The effective interest method is a2 method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant year. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition,

Derecognition of financial babilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial
statements in the year in which the dividend is approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the ptice that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordetly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such

basis.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the se of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized with in fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole.
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In addition, for financial reporting putposes, fair value measurements ate categorized into Level 1, 2 ot 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fait value measurements in its entrety, which are described as follows:

L Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unohservable inputs for the assets or liability.

Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the profit and loss account
except to the extent that relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in
which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Cuzrent tax

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The chatge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or
tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from
assessments finalised during the current year for such years.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxation is accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method in respect of
all temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit.
Defetred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the profit and loss account, excepr in the case of items credited or charged to
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in which case it is included in statement of
profit ot loss and other comprehensive income,

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 4 to these financial
statements, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilides that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates ate recognized in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year or
in the yeat of the revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years,
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Critical accounting judgements and key soutces of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Critical accounting judgements

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see 4.2 below), that
management has made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Classification of investments

Management decides on acquisition of an investment whether it should be classified as FVTPL or FVTOCI.
The Company classifies investments at FVIPL if they are acquired primarily for the purpose of making a
short-term profit by the dealers.

Equity instruments are classified as financial assets measured at FVI'OCI when they ate considered by
management to be strategic equity investments that are not held to benefit from changes in their fair value
and are not held for trading.

Management is satisfied that the Company’s investments in securities are appropriately classified.

Classification of properties

In the process of classifying properties, management has made various judgments. Judgments are needed
to determine whether a property qualifies as an investment property, property and equipment, property
under development and/or property held for sale. Management develops criteria so that it can exercise that
judgment consistently in accordance with the definitions of investment property, property and equipment,
property under development and property held for sale. In making its judgment, management has
considered the detailed critetia and related guidance set out in IAS 2 — Inventories, IAS 16 — Property, Plant
and Equipment, and IAS 40 — Investment Property, with regards to the intended use of the property.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business
model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how Company’s financial
assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement
reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their
performance measuted, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and
how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their
maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the
objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is patt of the Company’s continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets atre held continues to be
appropdiate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a
prospective change to the classification of those assets. No such changes were required during the years
presented.
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Critical accounting judgements (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the cartying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts

The estimation of ultimate liability arising from the claims made under insurance contracts is the Company’s
most critical accounting estimate. Thete ate soutces of uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimate
of the liability that the Company will eventually pay for such claims. Estimates have to be made both for
the expected ultimate cost of claims reported and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incutred but not
reported (“IBNR”) at the end of each reporting year. Liabilities for unpaid reported claims are estimated
using the input of assessments for individual cases reported to the Company and management estimates
based on external actuarial assessment, taking into account the historical data of the claims reported and
settlement pattern, Such method takes into account the best estimates of the future contractual cash flows
estimated based on the histotical data. At the end of each reporting year, prior year claims estimates are
reassessed for adequacy and changes are made to the provision.

Liability adequacy test

At the end of each reporting year, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of insurance
contract liabilities. The Company makes use of the best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims
handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such liabilities
in evaluating the adequacy of the liability. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the profit or loss.

Valuation of unquoted equity instruments

Valuation of unquoted equity investments is done by independent external valuer normally based on recent
market transactions on an arm’s length basis, fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same,
or other valuation models. In the absence of an active market for these investments or any recent
transactions that could provide evidence of the cutrent fair value, management estimates the fair value of
these instruments using net assets valuation method or other valuation models.
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Revaluation of investment properties

The investment properties are cartied at fair value, with changes in the fair value being recognized in the
Statement of profit or loss. The management engaged independent valuation specialists to assess fair value
during the yeat. The fair value of plots of land was determined based on an acceptable approach that reflects
recent transactions prices for similar properties. The fair value of buildings was determined using income
approach. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

Measurement of the expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance

The measurement of ECL is a significant estimate that involves determination of methodology, models and
data inputs. The following components have a major impact on the credit loss allowance for debt
instruments cartied at amottised cost, FVTOCI investments, bank balances and fixed deposits: definition
of default, significant increase in credit risk, probability of default (“PD”), exposure at default (“EAD”), and
loss given default (“L.GD”) and the historical loss experience per ageing bucket has the major impact on the
credit loss allowance for Insurance and other receivables. The Company regulatly reviews and validates the
models and inputs to the models to reduce any differences between expected credit loss estimates and actual
credit loss experience.

Insurance and reinsurance contracts

The Company applies the PAA to simplify the measurement of insurance contracts. When measuring
liabilities for remaining coverage, the PAA is broadly similar to the Company’ previous accounting treatment
under IFRS 4. However, when measuring liabilities for incurred claims, the Company now discounts cash
flows that are expected to occur more than one year after the date on which the claims are incurred and
includes an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

Liability for remaining coverage

For insurance acquisition cash flows, the Company is eligible and chooses to recognise the payments as an
expense immediately (coverage period of a year or less) for all acquisition cashflows except for commission
expense which is capitalised.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Liability for incurred claims

Other key circumstances affecting the reliability of assumptions include variation in interest rates, delays in
settlement and changes in foreign currency exchange rates,

The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection
techniques, such as Chain Ladder and Bornheutter-Ferguson methods.

The main assumption underlying these techniques is that a Company’s past claims development expetience
can be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. These methods
extrapolate the development of paid and incurred losses, average costs pet claim (inchiding claims handling
costs), and claim numbers based on the observed development of earlier years and expected loss ratios.
Historical claims development is mainly analysed by accident years, but can also be further analysed by
geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are usually separately
addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates or separately projected in
order to reflect their future development. In most cases, no explicit assumptions atre made regarding future
rates of claims inflation or loss ratios, Instead, the assumptions used are those implicit in the historical claims
development data on which the projections are based.

Additional qualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future,
(e.g., to reflect one-off occurrences, changes in external or matket factors such as public attitudes to
claiming, economic conditions, levels of claims inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal
factors such as portfolio mix, policy features and claims handling procedures) in order to arrive at the
estimated ultimate cost of claims that present the probability weighted expected value outcome from the
range of possible outcomes, taking account of all the uncertainties involved.

Other key circumstances affecting the reliability of assumptions include variation in interest rates, delays in
settlement and changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Discount rates

The Company use bottom-up approach to derive the discount rate. Under this approach, the discount rate
is determined as the risk-free yield, adjusted for differences in liquidity characteristics between the financial
assets used to derive the risk-free yield and the relevant liability cash flows (known as an ‘lliquidity
premium’). The risk-free rate was derived using swap rates available in the market denominated in the same
currency as the product being measured. When swap rates are not available, highly liquid sovereign bonds
with a AAA credit rating were used. Management uses judgment to assess liquidity characteristics of the
liability cash flows.

Discount rates applied for discounting of future cash flows are listed below:

Financial year 1 year 5 years 10 years 20 years 30 vear
31 December 2024 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25% 6.25%

31 December 2023 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
31 December 2022 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Risk adfustment for non-financial risk

The Company use Mack method or bootstrapping to determine its tisk adjustment for non-financial risk.
The bootstrap effectively allows the Company to measure the uncertainty about the amount and timing of
the cash flows that arise from non-financial risk since bootstrapping the triangles aims to illustrate the
variability of the paid claims.

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the compensation that the Company requires for bearing the
uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of insurance contracts. The risk
adjustment reflects an amount that an insurer would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that future
cash flows will exceed the expected value amount.

The Company has estimated the risk adjustment using a confidence level (probability of sufficiency)
approach at the 80th percentile. That is, the Company has assessed its indifference to uncertainty for all
product lines (as an indication of the compensation that it requires for bearing non-financial risk) as being
equivalent to the 80th percentile confidence level less the mean of an estimated probability distribution of
the future cash flows. The Company has estimated the probability distribution of the future cash flows, and
the additional amount above the expected present value of future cash flows tequired to meet the target

percentiles
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6 Intangible assets
Computer
software
AED
Cost
At 31 December 2022 867,657
Additions during the year 81,880
At 31 December 2023 949,537
Additions duting the year 35,200
At 31 December 2024 984,737
Accumulated amortization
At 31 December 2022 794,248
Chatge for the year 65,999
At 31 December 2023 860,247
Charge for the year 42,242
At 31 December 2024 902,489
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2024 82,248
At 31 December 2023 89,290
7 Investments properties
2024 2023
AED AED
Fair value at the beginning of the year 54,068,666 53,104,355
Change in fair value during the year 2,989,334 964,311
57,058,000 54,068,666

The fair value of the Company’s investment properties has been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried by
independent external valuers who have appropriate market experience in the valuation of properties in the
United Arab Emirates.

The fair value was determined based on the acceptable approach that reflects recent transactions prices for
similar properties, and income approach for other properties. In estimating the fair value of the propetties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

There is no addition or disposal during the year in investment properties.

During the year, the Company secured an overdraft facility amounting to AED 5,000,000. This facility is
collateralized by a mortgage on the subject property. The property, identified as Plot No-807, is a regular
rectangular-shaped plot with an area of 12,059 sq. ft. (1,169.7 sq. mt). It is located at Al Khan, Sharjah, near the
Al Khan Main Interchange, and overlooks Al Khan Street.

Investment propetties ate classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2024 (31 December
2023: Level 3) and are located in U.AE.

The property rental income earned by the Company from its investment properties and the direct operating
expenses related to the investment properties are as follows:

2024 2023

AED AED

Rental income 3,264,500 2,837,202
Direct opetating expenses (201,001) (48,925)

Net income from investment properties (Note 22) 3,063,499 2,788,277
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7 Investments properties (continued)

Details of the Company’s investment properties and their fair values ate as follows:
2024 2023
AED AED
Shops located in Sharjah, UAE 44,975,000 43,003,000
Plots of land located in Shatjah, UAE 6,170,000 5,895,000
Villas located in Sharjah, UAE 2,963,000 2,450,000
Building located in Shatjah, U.ALE. 2,950,000 2,720,666
57,058,000 54,068,666

8 Investment in securities

8.1 Investment carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

2024 2023
AED AED
Quoted securities 34,956,121 31,153,928
Unquoted securitics 4,854,217 5,508,711
39,810,338 36,662,639
Within U.A.E 12,791,830 15,124,894
In other GCC countties 27,018,508 21,537,745
39,810,338 36,662,639

8.2 Investment catried at fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)
2024 2023
AED AED
Quoted securities 141,159,034 139,459,078
Unquoted securities 48,105 75,747
141,207,139 139,534,825
Within U.AE 93,395,237 99,674,356
In other GCC countries 47,811,902 39,860,469
141,207,139 139,534,825

The electronic custody of investments designated at FVIPL with fair value of AED 41.5 million
(31 December 2023: 44.6 million ) are transfetred to the bank’s appointed broker as security against credit
facility granted to the Company (Note 19).

8.3 Movement in the financial investments
FVTPL FVTOCI Total
AED AED AED
At 1 January 2023 134,255,729 36,986,809 171,242,538
Additions 25,328,723 - 25,328,723
Disposals (20,121,228) (2,044,900) (22,166,128)
Changes in fair value 71,601 1,720,730 1,792,331
As at 31 December 2023 139,534,825 36,662,639 176,197,464
Additions 18,130,288 - 18,130,288
Dividend in kind — Shares 1,896,000 - 1,896,000
Disposals (17,278,617) (655,646) (17,934,263)
Changes in fair value (1,075,357) 3,803,345 2,727,977
As at 31 December 2024 141,207,139 39,810,338 181,017,477
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9 Statutory deposits

In accordance with the requirements of Article (38) of the UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023, the Company
maintains a bank deposit of AED 10 million (2023: AED 7.5 million) as a statutory deposit. This deposit cannot
be withdrawn without prior approval of the CBUAE and yields an interest rate per annum ranging from 3.3%
to 5% (2023: ranging from 0.55% to 2.8%).

10 Insurance and reinsurance contracts

The breakdown of groups of insurance and reinsurance contracts issued, and reinsurance contracts held, that
are in an asset position and those in a liability position is set out in the table below:

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Assets Liabilities Net Assets Liabilities Net
AED AED AED AED AED AED

Insurance contracts issued
Commetcial Fire &
Allied Lines (1,595,664) 44,305,339 42,709,675  (1,555788) 13,739,306 12,183,518
Marine Insurance (219,065) 1,079,179 860,114 (90,412) 910,309 819,897
Personal Motor (2,890) 30,095,210 30,092,320 (1,673) 10,880,809 10,879,136
Engineering &
Construction (137,230) 10,947,474 10,810,244 (677,706) 9,335,587 8,657,881
Others {280,936) 4,489,631 4,208,695 (380,179) 4,161,302 3,781,123
Total insurance

contracts issued (2,235,785) 90,916,833 88,681,048 (2,705,758 39,027,313 36,321,555
Reinsurance contracts held
Commetcial Fire &
Allied Lines (40,580,767) 3,500,883  (37,079,884) (10,322,870) 2,368,243 (7,954,627)
Marine Insurance (882,322) 277,170 (605,152)  (1,109,347) 81,428 (1,027,919)
Personal Motor (16,324,173) 2,407,276  (13,916,897)  (2737,161) 1,019,931 (1,717,230)
Engineering &
Construction (8,892,855) 1,235,843 (7,657,012) (7,753,797) 1,196 (7,752,601)
Others (3,160,786) 214,154 (2,946,632)  (2,173,645) 196,320 (1,977,325)
Total reinsurance

contracts held (69,840,903) 7,635,326  (62,205,577) (24,096,820) 3,667,118 (20,429,702)

The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued, showing the liability for remaining
coverage and the liability for incurted claims, is disclosed in the table on the next pages.
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10 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining
coverage and the liability fot incurred claims,

2024

Insurance contract liabilities as
ar 1 January

Insurance contract assets as at
1 January

Net insurance contract
liabilities as at 1 January

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses:
Incurred claims and other
expenses
Changes to liabilities for
incurred claims
Losses on onerous contracts
and reversals of those losses
Amortisation of insurance
acquisition cash flows

Insurance service result
Finance expense from
insurance contracts

Total changes in the

statement of comprehensive

income

Cash flows

Premiums received

Claims and other directly

attributable expenses paid

Insurance acquisition cash

flows paid

Total cash flows

Insurance contract liabilities as

at 31 December

IﬂSuL’RﬂCC contract assets as at

31 December

Net insurance contract

liabilities as at 31 December

Liabilities for

Liabilities for incurred claims

Estimates of

B— the present Risk Total
"8 value of future adjustment
SERREY cash flows
AED AED AED AED
6,942,812 29,759,152 2,325,349 39,027,313
(2,484,709) (206,476) (14,573) (2,705,758)
4,458,103 29,552,676 2,310,776 36,321,555
(32,070,002) - . (32,070,002)
- 44,409,380 - 44,409,380
- 38,645,642 3,113,223 41,758,865
623,679 - - 623,679
1,215,150 - - 1,215,150
(30,231,173) 83,055,022 3,113,223 55,937,072
- 1,602,223 144,424 1,746,647
(30,231,173) 84,657,245 3,257,647 57,683,719
33,174,357 - - 33,174,357
- (37,658,610) = (37,658,610)
(839,973) - - (839,973)
32,334,384 (37,658,610) = (5,324,226)
8,393,676 76,920,725 5,002,432 90,916,833
(1,832,362) (369,413) (34,010) (2,235,785)
6,561,314 76,551,312 5,568,422 88,681,048
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10 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insutance contracts issued showing the liability for temaining

coverage and the liability for incurred claims (continued)

2023 Liabilities for incurred claims
Liabilities for Estimates of the Ri
g sk
remaining present value of s Total
coverage  future cash flows o
AED AED AED AED
Insurance contract liabilities as
at 1 January 7,480,319 28,220,539 1,483,964 37,184,822
Insurance contract assets as at
1 January (2,719,225) (342,586) (27,859) (3,089,670)
Net insurance contract
liabilities as at 1 January 4,761,094 27,877,953 1,456,105 34,095,152
Insurance revenue (21,461,395) - - (21,461,395)
Insurance service expenses:
Incurtred claims and other
expenses - 15,166,234 E 15,166,234
Changes to liabilities for
incutred claims - 2,788,226 781,865 3,570,091
Losses on onerous contracts
and reversals of those losses (5,625,509) - - (5,625,509)
Amortisation of insurance
acquisition cash flows 1,653,667 - - 1,653,667
Insurance service result (25,433,237) 17,954,460 781,865 (6,696,912)
Finance expense from
insurance contracts - 1,087,970 72,805 1,160,775
Total changes in the statement
of comprehensive income (25,433,237) 19,042,430 854,670 (5,536,137)
Cash flows
Premiums received 26,468,777 - - 26,468,777
Claims and other directly
attributable expenses paid g (17,367,707) - (17,367,707)
Insurance acquisition cash
flows paid (1,338,530) - - (1,338,530)
Total cash flows 25,130,247 (17,367,707) - 7,762,540
Insurance contract liabilities as
at 31 December 6,942,812 29,759,152 2,325,349 39,027,313
Insurance contract assets as at
31 December (2,484,709) (2006,476) (14,573) (2,705,758)
Net insurance contract
liabilities as at 31 December 4,458,103 29,552,676 2,310,776 36,321,555
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10 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage
and the amounts recoverable on incurred claims:

2024

Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 1

January

Reinsurance contract assets as at 1
January

Net reinsurance contract
liabilities/(assets) as at 1 January

An allocation of reinsurance

premiums

Amounts recoverable from

reinsurance for incurred claims:
Amounts recoverable for incurred
claims and other expenses
Changes to amounts recoverable
for incurred claims
Loss recovery on onerous
underlying contracts & adjustment
Amortization of acquisition
expenses
Changes in non-petformance risk
of reinsurer

Net revenue/ (expense) from

reinsurance contracts
Finance expense from reinsurance
contracts

Total changes in the statement of

comprehensive income

Cash flows

Premiums paid

Claims and other directly attributable

expenses received

Reinsurance acquisition cash flows

Total cash flows

Reinsurance contract liabilities as at
31 December

Reinsurance contract assets as at 31
December

Net reinsurance contract
liabilities/ (assets) as at 31
December

Amounts recoverable on incurred
claims

Assets for Estimates of the Risk
remaining  present value of sttt Total
coverage future cash flows

AED AED AED AED
2,971,956 685,496 9,666 3,667,118
(4,052,390) (18,077,176) (1,967,254) (24,096,820)
(1,080,434) (17,391,680) (1,957,588)  (20,429,702)
26,108,927 - - 26,108,927
- (28,079,036) - (28,079,036)

- (37,379,392) (2,949,975) (40,329,367)

(938,779) - - (938,779)
(4,490,909) - - (4,490,909)
16,844 - - 16,844
20,696,083 (65,458,428) (2,949,975) (47,712,320)
- (1,288,772) (122,349) (1,411,121)
20,696,083 (66,747,200) (3,072,324) (49,123,441)
(19,768,864) - - (19,768,864)
- 20,106,148 - 20,106,148
7,010,282 - - 7,010,282
(12,758,582) 20,106,148 - 7,347,566
7,351,570 258,092 25,664 7,635,326
(494,503) (64,290,824) (5,055,576) (69,840,903)
6,857,067 (64,032,732) (5,029,912) (62,205,577)
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10 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage
and the amounts recoverable on incurred claims (continued)

2023

Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 1
January

Reinsurance contract assets as at 1
January

Net reinsurance contract

liabilities/ (assets) as at 1 January

An allocation of reinsurance

premiums

Amounts recoverable from

reinsurance for incutred claims:
Amounts recoverable for incutred
claims and other expenses
Changes to amounts recoverable
for incurred claims
Loss-recovery on onerous
underlying contracts and
adjustments
Amortisation of reinsurance
acquisition cash flows
Changes in non-performance risk
of reinsurer

Net revenue/ (expense) from

reinsurance contracts
Finance expense from reinsurance
contracts

Total changes in the statement of

comprehensive income

Cash flows

Premiums paid

Claims and other directly attributable

expenses received

Reinsurance acquisition cash flows

Total cash flows

Reinsurance contract liabilities as at
31 December

Reinsutance contract assets as at 31

December

Net reinsurance contract

liabilities/ (assets) as at 31 December

Amounts recoverable on incurred
claims

Asset_s .for Estimates of the Risk
g Pt dwen
AED AED AED AED
3,325,503 479,660 29,576 3,834,739
(3,062,363) (17,876,007) (1,117,508) (22,055,878)
263,140 (17,396,347 (1,087,932 (18,221,139)
19,876,109 - - 19,876,109
- (5,429,416) - (5,429,416)
- (4,424,114) (815,259) (5,239,373)
4,458,247 - - 4,458,247
(5,538,817) - - (5,538,817)
26,347 - - 26,347
18,821,886 (9,853,530) (815,259) 8,153,097
- (771,249) (54,397 (825,646)
18,821,886 (10,624,779) (869,656) 7,327,451
(22,781,561) - - (22,781,561)
- 10,629,446 - 10,629,446
2,616,101 - - 2,616,101
(20,165,460) 10,629,446 (9,536,014)
2,971,956 685,496 9,666 3,667,118
(4,052,390 (18,077,176) (1,967,254) (24,096,820)
(1,080,434) (17,391,680) (1,957,588) (20,429,702)
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10 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

In addition to scenatio testing, the development of insurance liabilities provides a measute of the Company’s
ability to estimate the ultimate value of claims. The top half of each table illustrates how the Company’s estimate
of liability for incurred claims for each accident year has changed at successive year-ends. The bottom half of the
table reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount appearing in the statement of financial position. The
following tables illustrate the Company’s estimate of total liability for incurred claims for the years up to 2024.

Gross insurance contract liabilities at 31 December 2024

2022
& prior 2023 2024 Total
AED AED AED AED
At the end of cach reporting year 105,453,968 16,403,356 80,708,539 202,565,863
One year later 100,998,343 15,167,710 - 116,166,053
Two years later 100,436,807 - - 100,436,807
Estimate of
cumulative claims 100,436,807 15,167,710 80,708,539 196,313,056
Cumulative payments to date 86,969.715 7.871,640 30,009,345 124,850,700
Total gross undiscounted liabilities for
incurred claims 13,467,091 7,296,070 50,699,195 71,462,356
Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve 908,041
ENID 505,734
Claims payable 10,667,862
Total gross undiscounted liabilities for
incurred claims 83,543,993
Effect of discounting (7,827,023)
Total discounted gross reserves included in
the statement of financial position 75,716,970
Risk Adjustments 6,402,763
Total liability for incutred claims 82,119,734
Net insurance contract liabilities at 31 December 2024
2022
and prior 2023 2024 Total
AED AED AED AED
At the end of each reporting year 43,828,781 2,347,702 8,774,774 54,951,257
One year later 42,202,976 1,880,593 - 44,083,569
Two years later 41,601,708 - - 41,601,708
Estimare of
cumulative claims 41,601,708 1,880,593 8,774,774 52,257,075
Cumulative payments to date 38,988,772 1,491,560 5,670,967 46,151,299
Total gross undiscounted liabilities for
incurred claims 2,612,936 389,033 3,103,807 6,105,776
Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve 908,041
ENID 10,207
Claims payable 5,923,635
Total gross undiscounted liabilities for
incurred claims 12,947,659
Effect of discounting (485,806)
Total discounted gross reserves included in
the statement of financial position 12,461,853
Risk Adjustments 595,237
Total liability for incurred claims 13,057,090
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11 Prepayments and other receivables
2024 2023
AED AED
Other receivables 3,608,340 4,649,799
Prepayments 552,148 610,018
4,160,488 5,259,817
12 Bank balances and cash
2024 2023
AED AED
Cash on hand 1,681 33,952
Portfolio accounts 612,357 612,357
Fixed deposits* 10,000,000 17,500,000
Current and call accounts 24,975,323 13,244 001
35,589,361 31,390,310
Banks in UAE 31,335,561 27,572,529
Banks in other G.C.C countries 3,639,762 3,171,472
Bank balances and cash (excluding cash on hand and
portfolio accounts) 34,975,323 30,744,001

* The interest rate on fixed deposits with banks is ranging from 3.30% to 4.35% (2023: ranging from 0.55% to
5.5%) per annum. Al fixed deposits are held in local banks in the United Arab Emirates.

13 Share capital

2024 2023
AED AED
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 150 million ordinary
shares of AED 1 each 150,000,000 150,000,000

14 Reserves

141  Statutory reserve

In accordance with the UAE Federal Law No. (32) of 2021 concerning Commercial Companies and the
Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of profit is to be transferred to non-distributable legal reserve. The
general assembly may suspend such transfer whenever the balance of the legal reserve equals 50% of the
Company’s paid up share capital. This reserve is not available for distribution except as stipulated by the
Law.

14.2  Voluntary resetve

As per Articles of Association, voluntary reserve can be created upon a recommendation of the Board of
Directors and this reserve cannot be utilized for any other purpose unless approved by the Ordinarily
General meeting, No transfer to voluntary reserve is made during 2023 and 2024.

14.3  Reinsurance reserve

In accordance with Insurance Authotity’s Board of Directors’ Decision No. 23 Article 34 of 2019, an
amount of AED 131,718 (2023: AED 94,012) was transferred from retained earnings to reinsurance reserve.
The teserve is not available for distribution and will not be disposed of without prior written approval of
Assistant Governor of the Bank and Insurance supervision Department of the CBUAE.

46



Sharjah Insurance Company P.S.C.
Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

15 Provision for employees’ end of service indemnity

Movements in the net liability were as follows:

2024 2023
AED AED
Balance at 1 January 969,330 856,730
Chatge for the year 245,470 176,720
Amounts paid during the year (55,490) (64,120)
Balance at 31 December 1,159,310 969,330
16 Other payables
2024 2023
AED AED
Accrued expenses and provisions 6,868,181 1,115,193
Rent received in advance 1,638,585 1,282,159
Others 193,248 27,171
8,700,014 2,424,523
17 Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are included in the statement of financial position as follows:
2024 2023
AED AED
Current 321,138 41,355
Non-current 1,060,938 10,510
Total lease liabilities 1,382,076 51,865

The Company has leased a building which is recognised as right-of use assets with lease term of 5 years.

The Company’s future minimum operating lease payments are as follows

Within 1 year 1-5 years After 5 years Total
December 31, 2024 AED AED AED AED
Lease payments 401,342 1,096,070 - 1,497,412
Finance chatges (80,204) (35,132) - (115,336)
Net present value 321,138 1,060,938 - 1,382,076
December 31, 2023
Lease payments 43,176 10,794 = 53,970
Finance charges (1,821) (284) - (2,105)
Net present value 41,355 10,510 - 51,865
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18 Basic and diluted earnings per share

Profit for the year (in AED)

Number of shates

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in AED)

2024 2023
AED AED
5,008,795 16,206,660
150,000,000 150,000,000
0.03 0.11

Basic and diluted earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted
average number of shates outstanding at the end of the reporting year. Diluted earnings per share as of 31
December 2024 and 31 December 2023 are equivalent to basic earnings per share as the Company did not
issue any new instrument that would impact earnings pet share when executed.

19 Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash
Fixed deposits

Less: Bank overdrafts

Bank overdrafts facility

2024 2023

AED AED
35,589,361 31,390,310
(10,000,000) (17,500,000)
25,589,361 13,890,310
- (2,578,269)
25,589,361 11,312,041

The Company availed bank overdrafts facility which is secured by electronic custody of investments
designated at FVTPL having fair value of AED 41.5 million (31 December 2023: AED 44.6 million), by the

bank’s appointed broket.

During the year, the Company secuted another overdrafts facility amounting to AED 5,000,000. This facility
is collateralized by a mortgage on the property. The propetty, identified as Plot No-807, is a regular
rectangular-shaped plot with an area of 12,059 sq. ft. (1,169.7 sq. mt) classified under investment property.
It is located at Al Khan, Sharjah, near the Al Khan Main Interchange, and overlooks Al Khan Street.

20 Insurance revenue

Amortisation of insurance acquisition
Amortzation of liability for remaining coverage

21 Insurance service expense

Incurred claims and other expenses
Amortisation of insurance acquisition
Changes to liabilities for incurred claims

Losses on onerous contracts and reversals of those losses

2024 2023
AED AED
1,215,150 1,653,667
30,854,852 19,807,728
32,070,002 21,461,395
2024 2023
AED AED
44,409,380 15,166,234
1,215,150 1,653,667
41,758,865 3,570,091
623,679 (5,625,509)
88,007,074 14,764,483
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22 Investment and other income and net insurance finance income

The table below presents an analysis of total investment income and insurance finance result recognised in
statement of profit ot loss and OCI for the year:

2024 2023

AED AED
Investment and other income
Amounts recognised in the profit or loss
Gain on disposal of financial investments at FVTPL 2,430,351 3,999,130
Unrealized (loss)/gain on financial investments at FVIPL (1,075,357) 71,601
Dividend income from financial investments FVTPL 6,489,530 5,809,444
Dividend income from financial investments FVIPL in kind
Shares . 1,896,000 -
Dividend income from financial investments FVTOCI 2,814,269 2,443.981
Rental income 3,063,499 2,788,277
Interest on bank deposit 494,640 288,813
Other investment (expense)/income (85,212) 1,763
Total investment income 16,027,720 15,403,009
Insurance finance (expense)/income from insurance
contracts issued
Due to changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions (1,746,647) 825,646
Total insurance finance (expense)/income from insurance
contracts issued (1,746,647) 825,646
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss (1,746,647) 825,646
Reinsurance finance income/(expense) from reinsurance
contracts held
Changes in non-petformance risk of reinsurer -
Due to changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions 1,411,121 (1,160,775)
Total reinsurance finance income/(expense) from
reinsurance contracts held 1,411,121 (1,160,775)
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss 1,411,121 (1,160,775)
Total investment income, insurance finance income and
reinsurance finance expense 15,692,194 15,067,880
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss 15,692,194 15,067,880
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23 Related party balances and transactions

Related parties include the Company’s major shareholders, directors and businesses controlled by them and
their families over which they exercise significant management influence as well as key management
personnel.

Related party balances

At the reporting date, amounts due from/to telated parties included under insurance and other receivables
and under insurance contract liabilities, respectively as presented below:

2024 2023
AED AED
Board members and entities under common control
(including shareholders)
Insurance receivables 7,511,424 7,984,502
Insurance payables (25,296) (27,885)
Outstanding claims (7,298,431) (3,892,342)
Right-of-use assets 1,780,441 362,083
Lease liability (1,369,908) -
Related party transactions
During the year, the Company entered into the following transactions with related patties:
2024 2023
AED AED
Board members and entities under common control
(including shareholders)
Insurance revenue 3,687,892 3,436,539
Insurance service expense 4,486,312 (866,378)
Rent paid (779,625) (745,000)
Key management compensation
2024 2023
AED AED
Directors’ remuneration 1,720,000 700,000
Salaries and short-term benefits 640,000 550,000
Salaties and long -term benefits 134,877 88,065
24 General and administrative expenses
2024 2023
AED AED
Staff cost 6,701,243 6,476,444
Legal and professional fee 1,923,149 1,465,400
Depreciation (Note 5) 784,093 749,580
Director's Remuneration (Note 23) 1,720,000 700,000
Government and regulatory fees 411,192 375,246
Office expenses 90,913 87,833
Amortization (Note 6) 42,242 65,999
Bank charges 95,659 84,656
Miscellaneous 1,620,950 696,850
13,389,441 10,702,008
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24 General and administrative expenses (continued)

85% of the general and administrative expenses amounting to AED 9,919,024 (2023: AED 8,501,705) is allocated
to the underwriting activities, excluding the director’s remuneration and management expenses, which is fully
unallocated. Unallocated portion is amounting to AED 3,470,417 (2023: AED 2,200,303).

25 Taxation
The Company has calculated their income tax liability in accordance with Federal Decree Law No (47) of 2022 on
the Taxation of Corporations and Businesses, Corporate Tax Law (“CT Law”) with effect from 1 January 2024.

(i) The income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
comprises the following;

2024 2023
AED AED

Income tax
Current income tax expense - -
Deferred tax expense 589,249 -
Total income tax expense 589,249 -

Deferred taxes atising from temporary differences and unused tax losses are summarized as follows:

Recognizedin -~ Net balances

Net balances Recognized Other at 31
at 1 January in profitor comprehensive December
2024 loss income 2024
AED AED AED AED
Deferred tax liability - 246,948 342,301 589,249
(i) Reconciliation of income tax expense:
2024 2023
AED AED
Profit before tax 5,255,743 &
Tax effects of
Add: Non-deductible expenses
Provisions chatges for the year (election of realization relief) 245,470 -
Expenditure incurred in deriving exempt income 3,029,921 -
Gain on sale of investments designated at FVTOCI (upon realization) 452,227 -
Less: deductible expenses
Unrealized gains of change in FV of investments properties (2,989,334) -
Dividend Income from UAE Companies (6,489,530) -
~ (5,751,246) -
Taxable income/ (losses) (495,502) =
Less: Taxable income not exceeding threshold 375,000 -

Adjusted taxable income - -

Tax at the tax rate of 9% effective from January 1, 2024 (2023: 0%) - -
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25 Taxation (continued)

(iti) Status of assessments

In line with Federal Decree Law No 47 of 2022 on the Taxation of Corporations and Businesses, Cotporate Tax Law
(“CT Law”), the Company must prepare their first corporate tax filing, within nine months after the end of their
relevant tax period ie. September 30, 2025. As this is the first period for which corporate tax is applicable to the
Company, a return has not previously been filed, and no previous assessments have been made.

26 Contingent liabilities and capital commitments

Company, in common with the significant majority of insuters, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its
business. The Company, based on independent legal advice, does not expect that the outcome of these court cases
will have a material impact on the Company’s financial performance or financial position.

27 Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of
the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable. The Company writes the general, medical and life insurance contracts. General insurance contracts
of the Company include Liability, Property, Motor, Fire, Marine and Engineering insurance contracts. Medical
insurance contracts include both individual and group medical insurance contracts. Life insurance contracts
include group, retail and credit life insurance contracts.

The principal tisk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments ot
the timing theteof, diffet ftom expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual
benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Company is to
ensute that sufficient reserves ate available to cover these liabilities.

Risk management framework

The Boatd of Directors has ovetall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's tisk
management framewotk. The Boatd has established the Audit and Risk Committee, which is responsible for
developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The Committee reports regularly to the
Board of Directors on its activities.
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27 Insurance risk (continued)

Risk management framework (continued)

The Company's tisk managément policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company,
to set appropriate tisk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

The Company's Audit and Risk Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's
risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation
to the risks faced by the Company. The Company's Audit and Risk Committee is assisted in its oversight role by
Internal Audit and Risk functions.

Two key clements of the Company's insurance risk management framework are its underwriting strategy and
reinsurance strategy, as discussed below.

Underwriting strategy

The Company's underwriting strategy is to build balanced portfolios based on a large number of similar risks. ‘This
reduces the variability of the pottfolio’s outcome.

‘The underwriting strategy is set out by the Company that establishes the classes of business to be written, the
territories in which business is to be written and the industry sectors in which the Company is prepared to
underwrite. This strategy is cascaded by the business units to individual underwriters through detailed underwriting
authotities that set out the limits that any one underwriter can wtite by line size, class of business, tettitoty and
industty in order to ensute appropriate risk selection within the pottfolio.

Reinsurance strategy

The Company reinsutes a portion of the insurance risks it underwrites in order to control its exposute to losses
and protect capital resources.

Ceded reinsurance contains credit tisk, as discussed in the financial risk management note. The Company has a
Reinsurance department that is responsible for setting the minimum-security criteria for acceptable reinsurance
and monitoring the purchase of reinsurance by the business units against those criteria. The department monitots
developments in the reinsurance programme and its ongoing adequacy.

The Company entets into a combination of proportionate and non-proportionate reinsurance treaties to reduce
the net exposure to the Company. In addition, underwriters are allowed to buy facultative reinsurance in certain
specified citcumstances.

Frequency and severity of claims

The Company manages insurance risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and
proactive claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well
diversified in terms of type and amount of risk, industry and geography. Underwriting limits are in place to enforce
appropriate risk selection criteria, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.

The Company has the right not to renew individual policies, re-price the risk, impose deductibles and reject the
payment of a fraudulent claim for both short and long-term insurance contracts. Insurance contracts also entitle
the Company to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation).

The reinsurance arrangements include excess of loss and catastrophe coverage. The effect of such reinsurance
arrangements is that the Company should not suffer net insurance losses of a set limit of AED 50,000 per
vehicle/Event for motor insurance in any policy (2023: AED 50,000 for motor insurance). Similarly, net loss
retained for general lines of business will not exceed AED 1,000,000 per event (2023: net loss retained for business
will not exceed 1,000,000 pet event). In addition to the overall Company reinsurance program, business units are
permitted to purchase additional facultative reinsurance protection, if needed.
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27 Insurance risk (continued)
Risk management framework (continued)

Frequency and severity of claims (continued)

The following tables disclose the concentration of insurance liabilities by line of business, The amounts are the
carrying amount of the insurance liabilities (gross and net of reinsurance) arising from the insurance contracts:

As at 31 December 2024
Gross Reinsurance Net
AED AED AED
Motor and General 87,844,965 61,499,159 26,345,806
Life 836,083 706,418 129,665
88,681,048 62,205,577 26,475,471

As at 31 December 2023
Gross Reinsurance Net
AED AED AED
Motot and Genetral 35,280,447 20,178,648 15,101,799
Life 1,041,108 251,054 790,054
36,321,555 20,429,702 15,891,853

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on insurance contracts ate payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Company is liable for all insuted
events that occutred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract
tetm. The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degtee of uncertainty than the estimation of the
cost of settling claims already notified to the Company, where information about the claim event is available. IBNR
claims may not be apparent to the insured until several months, quarters & sometimes years after the event that
gave rise to the claims. For some insutance contracts, the IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will
typically display greater variations between initial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of
difficulty of estimating these liabilities. In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the
Company considers information available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with
similar charactetistics in previous yeats. The Company involved an independent external actuary as well if deemed
necessaty. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order to allow for the possible
distortive effect of theitr development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incutred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate
information regarding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing some claims provisions,
it is possible that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability established.

The liability for these contracts comprises a provision for IBNR and a provision for reported claims not yet paid
at the end of the reporting year.

The amount of insurance claims is in some cases sensitive to the level of coutt awards and to the development of
legal precedent on matters of contract and tort.

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company’s estimation techniques
are based on Actuarial calculation which can be based purely on historical development of claims or Expected
Loss Ratios or a combination of both. The method and weightage are based on the merit of the line of business.
The Expected Loss-Ratio estimate is an important assumption in the estimation technique and is based on previous
years” experience, adjusted for factors such as premium rate changes, anticipated market experience and historical
claims inflation.
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27 Insurance risk (continued)
Risk management framework (continued)
Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments (continued)

The initial estimate of the loss ratios used for the current year before and after reinsurance ate analysed below by
line of business where the insured operates for current and prior year premium earned.

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Gross loss Net loss Gross loss Net loss
ratio Ratio ratio Ratio
Motor 183% 120% 80% 105%
Marine and aviation 54% 1253% 53% 114%
Life 43% . 11% T6% 36%

Engineering, fire, general accidents,

and others 387% 372% 78% 104%

The Company believes that the claim liabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the year-end are adequate.
However, these amounts ate not certain, and actual payments may differ from the claims liabilities provided in the
financial statements. The insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the various assumptions.

It has not been possible to quantify the sensitivity of specific variable such as legislative changes or uncertainty in
the estimation process.

A hypothetical 1% change in the loss ratio, net of reinsurance, would impact net underwriting income/(loss) as

follows:
For the year ended 31 December

2024 2023
AED AED

Impact of change in loss ratio by + 1%
Motor 174,416 37,509
Engineering, fire, general accidents, and othets 20,569 85,735
Total 194,985 123,244

Process used to decide on assumptions

The risks associated with insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables that complicate
quantitative sensitivity analysis. The Company uses assumptions based on a mixture of internal and market data
to measure its claims liabilities. Internal data is derived mostly from the Company’s quartetly claims reports and
screening of the actual insurance contracts carried out at the end of the reporting year to derive data for the
contracts held. The Company has reviewed the individual contracts and the actual exposure years of claims. This
information is used to develop scenarios related to the latency of claims that are used for the projections of the
ultimate number of claims.

The Company uses several statistical methods to incorporate the various assumptions made in order to estimate
the ultimate cost of claims. The two methods more commonly used are the chain-ladder and the Botnhuetter-

Ferguson methods.

Chain-ladder methods may be applied to premiums, paid claims or incurred claims (for example, paid claims plus
case estimates). The basic technique involves the analysis of histotical claims development factors, and the
selection of estimated development factors based on this historical pattern, The selected development factors are
then applied to cumulative claims data for each accident year that is not yet fully developed to produce an estimated
ultimate claims cost for each accident year, Chain-ladder techniques are most approptiate for those accident years
and classes of business that have reached a relatively stable development pattern. Chain-ladder techniques are less
suitable in cases in which the insurer does not have a developed claims history for a particular class of business.
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27 Insurance risk (continued)

Risk management framework (continued)
Process used to decide on assumptions (continued)

The Bornhuetter-Ferguson method uses a combination of a benchmark or market- based estimate and an estimate
based on claims expetience. The former is based on a measure of exposure such as premiums; the latter is based
on the paid or incutred claims to date. The two estimates are combined using a formula that gives more weight to
the experience-based estimate as time passes. This technique has been used in situations in which developed claims
expetience was not available for the projection (recent accident years or new classes of business).

The choice of selected results for each accident year of each class of business depends on an assessment of the
technique that has been most appropriate to observed historical developments. In certain instances, this has meant
that a weighted average of different techniques has been selected for individual accident years or groups of accident
years within the same class of business. The Company has an internal actuary, and Independent external actuaries
are also involved in the valuation of technical reserves of the Company and has used historical data for the past 9
years.

An analysis of sensitivity around various scenarios provides an indication of the adequacy of the Company’s
estimation process. The Company believes that the liability for claims reported in the statement of financial
position is adequate.

However, it recognizes that the process of estimation is based upon certain variables 2and assumptions which could
differ when claims are finally settled.

Sensitivity analysis
Measured under PAA
Impact on net | Impact on net Impact on
; profit profit equity | Impact on equity
2024 Chango?: - gross of net of gross of net of
assumptions . . . i
remsurance reinsurance reinsurance remsurance
AED AED AED AED
Expected loss +5% (541,624) 35,809 (541,624) 35,809
Inflation rate +1% 103,975 (16,293) 103,975 (16,293)
Expected loss -5% 372,801 (29,784) 372,801 (29,784)
Inflation rate -1% (193,532) 6,532 (193,532) 6,532
Impact on net Impact on net Impact on
i profit profit equity | Impact on equity
2023 Chmge. i gross of net of gross of net of
assumptions r ; : .
reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance remsurance
AED AED AED AED
Expected loss +5% (338,295) 74,997 (338,295) 74,997
Inflation rate +1% 34,041 (15,738) 34,041 (15,738)
Expected loss -5% 232,849 (62,378) 232,849 (62,378)
Inflation rate -1% (63,362) 6,309 (63,362) 6,309
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28 Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital, which the Company considers to be the equity as shown in
the statement of financial position, are:

® to comply with the insurance capital requirements required by UAE Federal Law No. (48) of 2023,
concerning Financial Regulatdons of Insurance Companies issued by the CBUAE and regulation of its
operations;

® (o protect its policyholders’ interests;

® to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

® to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the level
of risk.

In the UAE, the CBUAE specifies the minimum amount and type of capital that must be held by the Company
in addition to its insurance liabilities. The minimum requited capital (presented in the table below) must be
maintained at all imes throughout the year.

The table below summarises the minimum required capital of the Company and the total capital held.

2024 2023
AED AED
Total capital held 150,000,000 150,000,000
Minimum regulatory capital 100,000,000 100,000,000

The table below summarises the minimum required capital of the Company and the total capital held.

2024 2023
AED AED

I
Total Capital held 150,000,000 150,000,000
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) 100,000,000 100,000,000
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) 80,344,350 74,907,234
Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 26,781,450 24,969,078
Basic Own Funds 187,677,641 194,881,924
MCR solvency margin - (surplus) 87,677,641 94,881,924
SCR solvency matgin - (surplus) 107,333,106 119,974,690
MGF Solvency Margin - (surplus) 160,896,129 169,912,846

The UAE Insurance Companies register of the CBUAE has issued resolution no. 42 for 2009 setting the
minimum subscribed or paid-up capital of AED 100 million for establishing insurance companies and AED 250
million for reinsurance companies. The resolution also stipulates that at least 75 percent of the capital of the
insurance companies established in the UAE should be owned by UAE or GCC national individuals or corporate
bodies. The Company is in compliance with these rules.

Further, as per Article (8) of section (2) of financial regulations issued for insurance companies in U.A.E., the
Company shall at all times comply with the requirements of solvency margin. As of 31 December 2024, the
Company has complied with the requirements of solvency margin.
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29

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
In addition, for financial reporting putposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs
to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are desctibed as follows

° Level 1 the fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is based on quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting year. The quoted matket price used for financial assets held by the company is
the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1,
. Level 2 the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable martket data and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an insttument ate unobservable, the
instrument is included in Level 2.
e Level 3 if one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is

included in Level 3.

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

'The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined using the same valuation techniques and

assumptions as those used for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Fair value of the Company’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on recutting basis
Some of the Company’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting year. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined:

Financial Fair value as at Fair value Valuation Significant Relationship o
assets 31 December 31 December hierarchy techniques  unobservable unobservable
2024 2023 and key input inputs to fair
AED AED inputs value

Investment designated at FI"TOCI

Quoted bid
Quoted equity prices in an
secutities 34,956,121 31,153,928 Levell active market None. NA

Higher the net

Multiple based assets value of
Unc:fuotcd and OTC based the investees,
equity market valuation Net assets higher the fair
securities 4,854,217 5,508,711 Level 3 methods value. value
Investment designated at FU'TPL
Quoted Quoted bid
equity prices in an
securities 141,159,034 139,459,078 Level 1 active market None. NA.

Higher the net

Multiple based assets valie of
Unquoted and OTC based the investees,
equity market valuation Net assets higher the fair
secutities 48,105 75,747 Level 3 methods value value

181,017,477 176,197,464

There was no transfer between the levels during the year, There are no financial liabilities which should be measuted :
fair value and accordingly no disclosure is made in the above table.
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29 Fair value measurement (continued)

Fair value of the Company’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on recurring basis
(continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial assets and non-financial assets that ate measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable:

31 December 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED AED AED AED
Financial assets at FITOCI
Quoted equities 34,956,121 - - 34,956,121
Unquoted equities - - 4,854,217 4,854,217
Financial assets at FI/TPL
Quoted equities 141,159,034 - - 141,159,034
Ungquoted equities - - 48,105 48,105
Investment properties - - 57,058,000 57,058,000
176,115,155 - 61,960,322 238,075,477
31 December 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AED AED AED AED
Financial assets at FI/TOCI
Quoted equities 31,153,928 - - 31,153,928
Unquoted equities - - 5,508,711 ,508,711
Financial assets at FI/TOCI
Quoted equities 139,459,078 - = 139,459,078
Unquoted equities - - 75,747 75,747
Investment properties - 2 54,068,666 54,068,666
170,613,006 - 59,653,124 224,757,419
30 Financial risk

The Company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance
assets and insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is that in the long-tetm its investment proceeds
are not sufficient to fund the obligations atising from its insurance contracts. The most important components
of this financial risk are market risk (which includes foreign currency risk, equity and debt price risk and interest
rate tisk), credit risk, liquidity risk and operational risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the tisk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. The Company’s market risks may arise from open positions in (a) foreign currencies and (b)
interest bearing assets and liabilities, to the extent they are exposed to general and specific market movements.
Management sets limits on the exposure to currency and interest rate risk that may be acceptable, which are
monitoted on a regular basis.

Market tisk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis. There has been no change to the Company’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
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30 Financial risk (continued)
Foreign currency sk

There are no significant exchange rate tisks as all monetaty assets and monetary liabilities are denominated in
Arab Emirates Dithams, other G.C.C. currencies or US Dollars to which the Ditham is fixed.

Management believes that there is a minimal risk of significant losses due to exchange rate fluctuations and
consequently the Company has not hedged its foreign currency exposure.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its issuer, or factots
affecting all securities traded in the market. The Company is exposed to equity price risk with respect to its quoted
equity investments. The Company limits equity price dsk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by continuous
monitoring of developments in the matket. In addition, the Company actvely monitors the key factots that affect
stock and marketr movements, including analysis of the operational and financial performance of investees.

At the end of the reporting yeat, if the equity prices are 10% higher / lower as per the assumptions mentioned
below and all the other varables were held constant, the Company’s statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income fot the year ended 31 December 2024 would have increased / (decreased) by AED
14,120,714 and 3,981,034 respectively (year ended 31 December 2023: AED 13,588,202 and 3,453,961).

Method and assumptions for sensitivity analysis:

- The sensitivity analysis has been done based on the exposute to equity and debt price risk as at the end of
the reporting year.

° As at the end of the reporting year if equity and debt prices are 10% higher / lowet on the market value
uniformly for all equity and debt while all other vatiables ate held constant, the impact on profit and other
comprehensive income for the year has been shown above.

e A 10% change in equity and debt prices has been used to give a realistic assessment as a plausible event.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the tisk that the value or futute cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk relates to its bank deposits. At 31 December 2024, bank deposits
carty a fixed interest rate ranging from 3.30% to 4.35% per annum (31 December 2023: 0.55% to 5. 5% per
annum) and therefore not exposed to cashflow interest rate risk.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Company.

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the
tisk of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved
counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by
Management annually.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as
primary insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the payment
to the policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their
financial strength prior to finalisation of any contract.
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30 Financial risk (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Company maintains records of the payment history fot significant contract holders with whom it
conducts regular business. The exposure to individual counterparties is also managed by other mechanisms,
such as the right of offset where counterparties are both debtors and creditors of the Company. Management
information reported to the Company includes details of provisions for impairment on insurance receivables
and subsequent write-offs. Exposures to individual policyholders and groups of policyholders are collected
within the ongoing monitoring of the controls. Where there exists significant exposure to individual
policyholders, or homogenous groups of policyholders, a financial analysis equivalent to that conducted for
reinsurers is carried out by the Company.

Insurance receivables consist of a Jarge number of customers, spread across diverse industries and
geogtaphical areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of insurance receivable.

For insurance receivables, the Company has applied the simplified approach in TFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Company determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a
provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status of the
debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future economic conditions.
Accordingly, the credit risk profile of these assets is presented based on their past due status in terms of the
provision mattix.

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers. The Company defines countetparties as having similar characteristics if they
are related entities. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The catrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment losses,
represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of statement of financial
position:

2024 2023

AED AED
FVTPL investments — equity 141,207,139 139,534,825
FVTOCI investments — equity 39,810,338 36,662,639
Statutory deposit 10,000,000 7,500,000
Reinsurance contract assets 69,840,903 24,096,820
Insurance conttact assets 2,235,785 2,705,758
Other receivables 3,608,340 4,649,799
Bank balances and cash 35,587,680 31,356,358
Total credit risk exposure 302,290,185 246,506,199

At the end of the reporting year, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk, from insurance receivables
situated outside the U.A.E. were as follows:

2024 2023
AED AED
Inside UAE 23,034,542 22,964,823
Outside UAE 16,217,228 13,384,955
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30 Financial risk (continued)s

Credit tisk (continued)

The Company has no significant concentration of credit tisk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers. The Company defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they
are related entities. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The table below presents an analysis of bank balances and fixed deposits by rating agency designation at the
end of the reporting year based on Moody’s rating or its equivalent for the main banking relationship:

2024 2023

AED AED

A 19,990,003 6,410,735
BBB 11,393,853 21,215,626
B 3,584,931 3,116,640
Unrated 6,536 1,000
34,975,323 30,744,001

31 Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. When
controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications
ot can lead to financial loss.

The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational tisks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework
and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks.

The Company has detailed systems and procedutes manuals with effective segregation of duties, access
controls, authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff training and assessment processes etc. with a focus
on compliance and internal audit framework. Business risks such as changes in environment, technology and
the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and budgeting process.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
its financial liabilities at matutity date. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity trisk management rests with the

management, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Company’s short, medium and long-tetm funding and liquidity management requirements.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities to ensure that funds
are available to meet its commitments for liabilities as they fall due,

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets, financial liabilities,
insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contracts assets held. The maturity analysis has been presented
on a contractual undiscounted cash flow basis except for insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract
assets held which have been presented on their expected cash flows.
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31 Operational risk (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The contractual maturities of the financial instruments have been determined on the basis of the remaining

year at the reporting date to the contractual matutity date. The maturity profile is monitored by management
to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained.

Less than 1
year 1-5 years 5+ years No maturity Total
AED AED AED AED AED
31 December 2024
Financial assets
FVTPL investments — equity - - - 141,207,139 141,207,139
FVTOCI investments — equity - - - 39,810,338 39,810,338
Statutory deposit 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
Other receivables 3,608,340 - - - 3,608,340
Bank balances and cash 35,589,361 - - - 35,589,361
49,197,701 - - 181,017,477 230,215,178
Financial liabilities
Other payables 7,061,433 - - - 7,061,433
Lease liability 321,138 1,060,938 - - 1,382,076
7,382,571 1,060,938 - - 8,443,509
31 December 2023
Financial assets
FVTPL investments — Equity - - - 139,534,825 139,534,825
FVTOCI investments — equity - - - 36,662,639 36,662,639
Statutory deposit 7,500,000 - - - 7,500,000
Other receivables 4,649,799 B - - 4,649,799
Bank balances and cash 31,390,310 - - - 31,390,310
43 540,109 - - 176,197,464 219,737,573
Financial liabilities
Other payables 1,297,365 ; 5 1,297,365
Lease liability 41,355 10,510 - - 51,865
Bank overdrafts 2,578,269 - - - 2,578,269
3,916,989 10,510 - - 3,927,499
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33 Gross written premiums

Details relating to gross written premium are disclosed below to comply with the requitements of CBUAE
and are not calculated as per the requirements of IFRS 17:

All types of

Life Fund Medical  Property & Business

31 December 2024 Insurance  Accumulation  Insurance Liability =~ Combined

AED AED AED AED AED

Direct written premiums - = = 28,884,768 28,884,768
Assumed business

Foreign - : - - 5

Local - = - 4,163,080 4,163,080

Total assumed business : - - = 4,163,080 4,163,080

Gross written premiums - 3 = 33,047,848 33,047,848

All types of

Life Fund Medical  Property & Business

31 December 2023 Insurance  Accumulaton  Insurance Liability = Combined

AED AED AED AED AED

Direct written premiums = = = 16,992,273 16,992,273
Assumed business

Foreign = # - & -

Local " ' - - 3,384,516 3,384,516

Total assumed business - - - 3,384,516 3,384,516

Gross written premiums z - - 20,376,789 20,376,789

34 Dividends and Director’s remuneration

At the Annual General Meeting held on April 29, 2024, the sharcholders approved a final dividend in respect
of the year ended December 31, 2023, of AED 10,500,000, 7 fills per share. Further, Shareholders also
approved Board of Ditectors remuneration of AED 700,000 for the year ended December 31, 2023.

35 Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the statement of financial position date that would significantly
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024.

36 Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on March 24,
2025.
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ABOUT THIS ABOUT SHARJAH INSURANCE
REPORT

The Sharjah Insurance Company Sustainability Report 2024 highlights
the company’s commitment to Environmental, Social, and Governance
(ESC) principles, integrating sustainabllity into its operations. It
emphasizes inltiatives to reduce carbon footpring, enhance anergy
efficiency, and promote waste reduction, aligning with UAE Vision
m.nnrmmshuwnmﬂmnmlpﬂmwmh,m
customer and community engagement, and a focus on FOVErMEnc,
mmmmmmnm‘nuunumh
digitalization, Emiratization, diversity, and workforee developmant,
reinforcing the company's dedication to lang-term sustainable growth
and responsible business practices.

Sharjah Insurance Company (SIC) s one of the leading insurance providers In the UAE,
with a legacy spanning over five decaries, Established In 1970, it holds the distinction of
being tmwkuufmmmmhu-mlndhusimmhwmmawmd
name in the industry. The company is publicly listed on the Abu Dhabl Securities
Exchange (ADX) and operates with a strong financial foundation, ensuring stability and
growth. With a vision to provide comprehensive, customer-centric insurance solutions,
Sharjah Insurance has built a reputation for redlability, transparency, and innovation in
the insurance sector. Its services cater 1o individuals, businesses, and government
entities, offering tallored insurance products that safeguard assets, businesses, and
lhves,




Major Clients

. I“‘““‘"—“* \ADILu I B8N yeno @

SHARJAH ISLAMIC BANK EM lc




BUSINESS
STRATEGY

Sharjah Insurance Company plsces a strong emphasis on providing premium
hﬂnmmmﬁwuhudhuulﬂdmhmpuﬂnﬂmhmmwl:
committed to delivering high-quality insurance services while maintaining a
wm-mmnmtsuminumhnmmmm
Promises, fostering long-lasting relationships with stakeholders, and maximizing
value for all parties.

With & focus on Innovation and sustainabiliy, Sharjah insurance actively promotes
mmummmtm:mummmmm needs and future
challenges, particularly those posed by climate change. The comparty’s strategic
approach  Includes embedding sustainable business practices across its
operations, contributing to an ethical transition toward climate resillence and
achleving net-zero emissions. This commitment underscores its role as @
responsible corporate entity focused an bullding a sustainable future.

To ensure these goals are met, Sharjah Insurance's managamant committoe
conducts ongoing assessments of ts operations, ensuring that all initiatives align
with global and local sustsinability standards, By adhering to international best
practices and fostering innavation, the company strengthens its ability to dellver
mmmumamnmlmnhmnmummm
Mmhclmbm&lmmtlhutﬁmth!tluﬂnrMumemm

stewardship and social responsibility.

BUSINES

o
SEGMENTS E

Sharjah Insurance offers a comprehensive suite of insurance services designed o meet the
diverse needs of its clients across personal, commercial, and industrial sectors. By
addressing the unique requirerments of individuals and businestss alike, the company
ensures holistic coverage that provides protection and peace of mind, With it tallored
solutions, Sharjah Insurance demonstrates its commitment to delivering rellable and
adaptable insurance options, catering to a wide range of Industries and personal
circumstances. This approach reflects the tompany's dedication to bullding trust and long-
term relationshios with its valued cllantele.




Sharjah Insurance Product Portfolio

Personal & Life Insurance : Personal
Accident Insurance and Group life
Insurance.

Motor Insurance
Comprehensive lnsuranm. Third
Party Liability Insurance.

o,

hghmln.ln-nm

Contractor's Plant & Machinery

I'.k All Risk Insurance, Machinery Property related all risk
., Breakdown Insurance,

“~.All Risks Insurance,

General Accident & Liability Insurance
'orkmen's Compensation insurance,
oyers Liability insurance, Money
fance, Fidelity Guarantee Insurance,
Insurance.




SUSTAINABILITY IN OUR BUSINESS

At Sharjah insurance, sustainability is deeply embedded in our
core values and operational philosophy, guiding evary aspect
of our business. As an Insurance CoOmpany, we recognize the
ihnﬂlwumhmphymlddmsﬂngmulndhcﬂ
challanges by integrating sustainability principles inte our
operations, stakeholder engagement, and risk manageamant
sirategies. Our cormmitment afigns closely with the
Sustainable Development Goals (5DGe), ensuring that our
actlons contribute to & more equitable, resiliert, and
sustainable future. With decades of expertiss in risk mitigation
and comprehenshe Insurance coverage, we continuoushy
strive (o enhance our risk identification and managemant
tools, enabling us to anticipste and acdress emerging

Ow commitment to sustainabliity also exends to fostering
societal resilience and inclusive growth. We focus on developing
affordable and tallored insurance solutions to cater to the needs of
emerging consumers and underserved communities, SNSUring
that everyone has access to financial protection. By supparting
inclusive economic opportunities and promoting financial literacy,
we empower individusls and businesses o thrive |n a rapidiy
changing workd Through continuous engagement  with
stakeholders, including clients, reguiators, and communities, we
ensure that our practices reflect thelr evoling expectations and
align with global sustainabiiity standards Our mansgement
committee conducts regular sssessments to ensure compliance
with frameworks such as the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) and
Task Force on Climate-Relasted Financial Désclosures (TCFD),
turther reinforcing our dedication to transparency, accountability,
and responsible business practices,




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial performance report for 2023 and 2024 highlights key changes in total
mﬂw.mnmmhmwmhmmulmnmum
.86 million, with mlmwd@ﬂﬂxnﬂrhtmﬂrmmdﬁnm
nﬂhuandlnuhmﬂmmmummmmdhhm:-ﬂﬂn
n&ammﬁmmmﬂmhmmwnﬁnnm:mmmmml equity
mmmwn&nzﬂmmammwmumwmmm
3305 million, However, net income dropped to AED 545 million, and no dividends
mm.mmwmmmwmmmmmmm
mmln:rmﬁwnninﬂmmﬂllmh\MWAEDZLTDmﬂthmM.lnM
wwrmmmnmzmmnmmnﬂammwms
memnuﬂmmﬂtnﬁnmmm“m-M
mhu!ndhhdmhﬂnmmuhﬁulsmm Insurance which we wish
1o continue in year 2025,

o Il
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Financial Highlights
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CUSTOMER AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS

At the heart of our corporate values Is an unwavering dedication to
client satisfaction. We strive to not only meet but exceed our clients
expectations by fostering  trust-based relationships and consistently
clelhvering business excellence. By maintaining strong connections with
our clients, many of whom are leaders in thelr respective industries, and
keeping open lines of communication, we gain a deep understanding
of their needs and provide tailored, responsibile solutians,

Over the past year, our sales windows at Injazat Khalidya, Aljazzat
Tawjesh, and the Sharish Municipality have enabled direct
engagement with customers, further strengthening our community
relationships. Moving forward, our focus Is on axpanding our producer
network st both the Sharjah head office and branch levels, while
enhancing collaboration with Insurance brokers ta estend market
coverage and drive cverall growth. These initiativies reflect our steadfast
commitment to delivering outstanding sendce and reinforcing ol
position as a leading player in the insurance industry.

BUSINESS ETHICS

The company recognizes that ethical business conduct is fundamental
to fs success and long-term sustainability, To foster transparancy,
soveral deliberate measures have been implemanted, including an
open-door policy, the use of collaborative task and project
Management tools, and the promation of open communication at all
hierarchical levels. These initiatives ensure that every individual within
the organization actively engages in business  activities with
unwavering honesty, integrity, and alignment with spplicable |aws,
regulations, and the company's mission,

The company's commitment to combating bribery and corruption ks
decply embedded in its operstional framework and reflecied in its
Systems and programs. Employees at all levels share the responsibility
of upholding the company's ethical standards, which are central to its
Corporate mission. This dedication to integrity and Uansparency serves
a5 a comerstone of the organization's values, ensuring sustainable
growth and trust among stakeholders

Business

Ethics
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DIGITALIZATION AND DATA PRIVACY s

In today's rapidly evolving digital landscape, our company Is
proactively adapting to the demands of digitalization, aligning i
strategies with client expectations, and making significant [
investments in technology to ensure long-term sustainability i
and competithaness. These efforts underscore cur commitment
o optimizing ocperstional pedormance and enhancing
CUSlOMMiar experiences 3

Digitalization Initiatives
)

Digital Products

We are committed to innovation and meeting the evolving needs of our clients by -

enhancing thair experience, efficlency, competitivenaess, and profitability,

Technology Enablement

We emphasize creating a modern and scalable infrastructure that Supports evalving
work parterns and enables seamless core processes for delivaring high-quality
services.




COMMUNITY RELATIONS

1
mmmmmm
mmwmmmmup—%ﬂm
is devweloping a comprehensive community relations

wmmmrmwmmu organizations |
mmmmhmmmmwwm L

mwmwmm
This dedication is reflected in a range of initistives, including charitablo c
Hmmm&mmfwmmmhn

mummmemml
m-wmnuuimnmhwmm Thi

wnmuhmwmmmmﬁwmum.
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EMIRATIZATION

The Community & Emiratization Report for 2024 highlights Sharjah
Insurance Company's dedication to fostering local community
1n_mmmmmenmlmmmmmm
wm;mmmmmﬂ@m
Mhuhniswmtmmmllulmmmmm
Wmmmwmmnmm
ManmwMMIndmmnmn
balanced approach to gender represertation. While the Emiratization
rate decreased slightly from 2157% in 2023 to 2037% in 2024, the
company continues te peloritize the inclusion of national talent,
mhfnﬁdnﬁmﬂmuwlthmhmmnmntm

19.50% 20.00% 20.50% 21.00% 21.50% 22.00%

WMMEWWWWMMIWDIWMHWWM
mlmmmmﬂwmﬂuﬂyﬁ.mmlwmm|
mmmrmm“wwmmmmmms
mﬂmmeammm“-mwmﬂmwmm
andmmmmmuqnmmmﬂm:m-mmmw
mﬂhmhnlmhntmmwmﬂWsmnﬁ:wmﬂm

Mumber of Emirati Employees

Numbsers
Numbaer of Emirti employees by gender | 2023
and 2024}
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OUR HUMAN CAPITAL

Recognizing that our employees are imegral to our success, we have
implemented a strategic hiring spproach that ensures individunls are
placed in the right roles while prioritizing skill development and
career progression. Our commitment extends beyond recrultment,
wnhlmornqampnlsﬁnnmhmnainlnnandmmﬂunal
thmmpwrwmmmmmmm
landscape. Our dedication o gender equality, diversity and inclusion
(D&}, training and development, and employes angagement reflects
our pledge to creating an inclusive and high-performing workplace.
By integrating gender-inchusive language into all communications,
we foster a neutral and unbiased environment, alirminating any form
of discrimination based on gender or social identity.

Total Employess that left
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DIVERSITY, EQUALITY AND INCLUSION

Shariah Insurance ks committed to fostering diversity, equity, and Inclusion within its
workforce. Currently, the company employs 51 individuals, with 399 representation
mmmm-mtmmmmlnmu-umwmmm
mﬁmmmﬁnﬁngrﬂmﬁmb&ﬂhamubﬂu&;ﬂmﬂkﬁm“ﬂhﬂm

We are dedicated 1o culthvating a culture of continuous learning, ensuring that all
mmum“ummwummnmdmmm
enhancement, and career progression. To uphold transparency and fairmess, we
have implermented a comprehensive appraisal system, which includes quarerly
mlmmmmﬂﬂmwmuﬂ-mmw
mmnmmmMrdkmmrﬂnfwmmw
and merit-based approach to professional growth.

The report highlights a significant increasa in total new hires, doubling frorm 7
in 2023 to 14 in 2024, with female hires consistently dominating both years (5
in 2023 to 10 in 2024). Male hires also grew from 2 to 4 but remain
proportionally lower, indicating a strong smphasis on gender  diversity
Internships sew & minimal start in 2024, with only one femnads intern and no
male participation, signaling a need to expand internship epportunities for
both genders. While the hiring trends demonstrate positive growth and a
focus on inclusivity, enhancing male sngagement in hiting and internships,
along with tracking training participation rates, could further strengthen
workforce balance and development
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OUR CULTURE OF LEARNING

Sales, Marketing and
Customer Experience

Insurtech Programs

o5

Management Skills

Program for Insurance

Insurance Operation

ST g




TRAINING ON SUSTAINABILITY

Our organization hdmbrmmfmdtnmhglmmmwuurﬂmmngd
mmmmmmmhmwmmmmmmwmtm
critical -mdmmmmmmmmmmm
providing accurate knowledge empowers individuals to make Infarmed declsions and
encourages positive behavier change.
Mundthhmmhnﬁntmmd“hnlngnmﬂmbﬁymﬁmmmmw
employess in the coming years. This initlative aims e equip our workdorce with the
Mmmmrnmmum-mmmmiMminﬂmhm
inmnminm.wduhqnmmuwrduhmmmhl.ldlnnnmmum
only values the importance of sustainability but nlso actively integrates it into our
organizational practices.

m-hu-dummmmwmm areas, including:

Wummwmﬂmmthmnmmmmmm
staying MmﬂwhEWLML-MW{EﬂMB
crucial for long-term success. This involves prioritizing the measuremnent and rmanagemant of
ESG-related performance to adopt a comprehensivi and integrated approach to sustainabifity.

Exploring global frameworks, standards, and local regulations within the ESG domain, alongside
insights into disclosure requirements, ensures alignment with best practices and compliance
mandates. Additionally, leveraging case studies fram both global and local companies
highlights the connection between effective ESG implementation and enhanced financial
perfarmance, demonstrating the tangibie hmm:#mﬂw-dﬂmm
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uhmtmwmntmhnndmmtkuaﬁulhmﬁm.
m:ﬁngwwwmmmdinﬂm.
Swﬂmuuhurdmmmmmwiﬂmmmmmm
Emmwmmm.mmmmlmw
mmummmasﬂmchqumm

mmﬂMpmmmm-m.mm
mmm1m¢mwwmmmwmmuw
lﬂ'ﬂlﬂhur%mﬂ:ﬂuﬂ;hﬂdkﬂwﬂu!ﬂﬂhm.
reflecting a diversified mumwdhmmm:um
undmmmmmmmmummmuwm.mw
coTporate stewardship Nmmdﬂmﬁﬂ.dhlmmhunhhnwmm
only national shareholders

internal Control

mhmmmmmummm
slong with making reasonable assumptions and estimations related to individual
mmm%mmmmmmmmm.tm
mmwmdmnﬂmmmm the report from

substantial mhﬂmmmwmmﬂuﬂm activitios.

mmmmmdwmmmmmmm
mmrmmmmmmmmmmmm

meticulously erafted in alignrment with internationally recognized frameworks

==

Board of directors

mummeNMmmmemm
[ESG) mmmwmummmmmwmwm4.
mmmﬂnﬂymhbmmdmmummm
wmm-mmmu;-um independent UAE
thlnMngaMaqumhmﬂﬁwmanEm
dhﬂwmkﬂmﬂuhmmmmmﬂmﬂﬂtﬂmma
Eﬂpwmhrhlngﬁmﬂ&bﬁh:ﬂﬂmmﬂnhmmmwmmm
muammﬂm&uamﬂuﬂmdhmhmmm
MﬂHﬂ,MﬂhhﬂHﬂMWhllM&Sﬂ.ﬂhuﬂhﬂubﬂuﬂhw
independent, improvemnents In environmental management and gender
anmmmnmmnmm
Strengthening governance transparency and enhancing female leadership
representation will further improve Esc performance and corporate
accountability,
MTM

o

———
| Lr—_.. e




governance bodies, senior executives, and employees. In line with regulatory requirements, we report the total annual compeansation of the CEQ,
including all bonus payments, which reflects a CEO-to-median employee salary ratio of 9.5%,

Strategically, the remuneration policy incentivizes company executives to prioritize sustainability performance, aligning with our cormmitment to

managing the company’s economic, environmental, and societal impact. These remuneration arrangements reinforce the alignment of
organizational goals with sustainable business practices.

Risk Management




SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

mmdmnsmmmmmmmmwmmmmm-mmm
Mluﬂ'ﬁlﬂuﬂmuﬁmhﬂ%mﬂhﬂutﬁmﬂhn%ﬂmﬁnﬂd‘ﬂmmﬂ_ﬂmmlwmﬂ
mmmmmw.mmmwmmmmmmmmkmm
ambitions by the 2030 deadline requires focused and collaborative efforts from all sectors of society.
mwd-lw-du-lmmmummuusnnmwmuammgtummmnmmlwwmmmm
academia. They provide clear guidance on where collective efforts should be directed and how cross-sector collaboration can be harmessed 1o achieve shared
mmWMMWWMMmMMMIMMmmmm.MW
progress, and buliding a better future for all
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS
Ll
mun:.ml:mﬁtMWMMWMMﬂh*W-lmmimwmkMuMmupthgm
pledge of “leaving no one behind,* the nation is dedicated 1o mmmmﬂwnm equitably across all segments of society,
|

n-mmunguunmmufmmmmmwmmhm i MWMMMMMMMHEMM
mmmmmmﬁmmmmmm, the Sustainabie Development Goals (SDGs).
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Sharjah Insurance PSC

Governance Report Form for Year 2024

1- A Statement of the Actions that have been Taken for the Completion of the

Corporate Governance System in Year 2024, and the Manner of

Implementation Thereof:

Sharjah Insurance Co is committed to the implementation of all the provisions stated
in the resolution of the Securities & Commaodities Authority (SCA), and has set forth
i the vision thereof, taking in consideration the importance of the implementation of
the governance regulations of public shareholding companies, in accordance with the
Ministerial Resolution No. 3/RM of 2020, concerning the standards of enterprise
' discipline and the governance of public shareholding companies, in what would
enable the attainment of the results desired therefrom, especially as in relation to the

enhancement of the standard of regulation, compliance, and control.

Full compliance with governance rules and standards in the formation and
structuring of the Board of Directors, in accordance with governance rules, has been
observed to include independent and non-executive Directors, along with adherence
to the creation of control and follow-up committees and ensuring the independence
of internal control officers in the performance of their job tasks, as the internal control
department enjoys the necessary independence for performing the tasks thereof and
receiving immediate information, a thing which has contributed to the rigorous
implementation of control procedures, the accurate review of financial statements,
tracing the management of the internal conirol department by the Board of Directors,
and the forwarding of reports directly to the audit committee being formed out of the
Board of Directors, according to an operation mechanism that aims for a toral
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SHARJAH INSURANGCE 39 Oolill d 5L i)

evaluation and audit of the various risks that are facing the company and the
implementation of the committee’s recommendations and the directives of the
company’s Board of Directors, and the forwarding of reports to the Board of Directors
' for following-up the progress of work and the discussion of any remarks, if any.

Through developing the information systems regulations and programs, it becomes
possible for accurate information and comprehensive immediate reports to flow,
: moment by moment, in regard of all technical, financial and administrative activities,
| which contributed accurately in the evaluation of operational procedures and risk
management.

We, at Sharjah Insurance Co, declare the proper implementation of governance rules
and the attainment of acwal control to ensure the compliance of all the company's
' workers with the technical and financial systems, procedures, and provisions that

regulate the operation thereof.

2- A Statement of the Ownership and Dealings of Directors and Their Spouses and

Children in the Securities of the Company in Year 2024, According to the

Fullnwing Table:

There are no (sale/purchase) transactions in the securities of Sharjah Insurance Co
| PSC in year 2024 by the Directors and their spouses and children. The following
| statement shows the balance shareholding of the Directors and their spouses and

children in the securities of the company.

Page 2 of 35

Hegd Cffice FQ. Box 792, Sharjah, LIAE Tel: (D6) 5195668 Fax: () S1PE6AT =) 1RSIV : (51 (1) OVATTTT: il | LAY e o e S5,
DOubgi Brarich @ PO, Box 7258, Dulbai, UAE Tel: [04) 397979 Fax: [04) 3979704 (-2 POV | S (O ER POV Lile o ua VYRR s Y

. aisharjohins . Sharjahinsuroncecompany . Sharlah Insurance Company

. sico@emirates.netoe . wwwshjins.com




SHARJAH INSURANGE

Owned
Position / Total Total
Name Shares as on
Consanguinity Sale Purchase
31/12/2023
Ahmed Mohamed Hamad Al- The Chairman of the
Mone None MNone
Midfa Board of Directors
Vice Chairman 7,005,311
Ahmed Salem Abdullah Al-Hosani None MNone
shares
A member of the
Obaid Mohammed Al-Zaabhi None MNone None
Board of Directors
A member of the
Arwa Mohamed Al-Owais MNone None Mone
Board of Directors
Al Salim Abdelrahman Hamad A member of the
None Mone None
Al-Midfa Board of Directors
Salim Mohamed Abdalla Ahmed A member of the 398,730
MNone Mone
Al-Khayyal Board of Directors Shares
A member of the
Ahmed Obaid Yousuf Al Qaseer
Board of Directors None MNone None
BuAli
from 28/11/2023
A brother of a
Mohammed Salem Abdullah Al- 7.005,311
member of the Mone None
Hosani shares
Board of Directors
A brother of a
Abdullah Salem Abdullah Al- 7,748,268
member of the None None
Hosani shares
Board of Directors
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A Fatherof a
Salem Abdullah Salem Abdullah 44,681,818
10 member of the None None
Al-Hosani shares
Board of Directors
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3-  The Formarion of the Board of Directors:

a) A statement of the formation of the Board of Directors (with the
addition of the names of resigning and appointed Directors), according

to the following table:

® The formation of the Board of Directors as of 31/12/2024

The
Duration
Their
of Service
Members
asa
hips and
| Member of
Positions Control,
| Category (Executive, | Expertise & the
. inany | governmental
SN Name Non-Executive, & | Qualificatio | Company’s
Other or commercial
Independent) ns Board of
Sharehol positions
' Directors
ding
from the
' Compani
Date of His
es
First
Election
Mr. Ahmed The Chairman of the | Businessman
' 1 Mohamed Al- Board of Directors, — University | Since 1998 - 5
Midfa MNon-Executive Graduate
| - A
' Mr. Ahmed b
_ _ Businessman R
Salem Abdullah | Vice Chairman,
2 — University | Since 2017 | of the
Salem Al- Non-Executive &
Graduate Board of
Hosani
L Diirectors
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of Sharjah
Cement &
Industrial
Developm
ent
Company.
, A
member
of the
Board of
Directors
of Umm
Al
Quwain
General
Investmen
=

Company.

Mr. Obaid
Mohammed

Obaid Al-Zaabi

Board Member,

Independent

Government
Positions —
Diploma
Degree

Since 2021

A member
of the
Board of
Directors
of Union
Insurance
Company
(formerly)

Mrs. Arwa Board Member,

Government

Since 2021

The Director of

Heod Office
Dubai Bromch

. sicoEemirates.net.ae
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U-to Lil a5;Lidul

Mohamed
Sultan
Mohamed Al-

Owais

Independent

Positions —
Diploma
Dﬂgn!t

the Accounts
Department of
the Central
Finance
Department of
the Emirate of

Sharjah.

Ahmed Obaid
Yousuf Al
Qaseer BuAli

Board Member,

Independent

Businessman
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' Mr. Ali Slaim — Businessman Airport
6 Abdelrahman — University | Since 2023 Authority.
Independent
| Hamad Al Midfa Graduate « Member of
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Council.
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Company
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Board of
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Member of
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| Insurance
Company.
« Member of
the Board of
' Trustees of
| Skyline
University
College.
= Member of
i the Supreme
Committee
for Human
Resources in
the Emirate
of Sharjah.
| Member of
Sharjah

Volunteering

' ‘ Committee.
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-Member of the
Board of
Directors of the
Arabian  Gulf
Trading
Company.
-Member of the
' Board of

Directors of Al-

Salim Mohamed Businessman

Board Member, Kyl
7 | Abdalla Ahmed — University | Since 2023 for Trade and
Independent
Al Khayyal Graduare Investment.

-Member of the
Board af

Grﬂup

Directors of Al-
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Investment
Company.
- Sharjah
Charity House

| Foundation -
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b) A statement of the percentage of women representation in the Board of Directors

in year 2024 .
14% is the percentage of women representation in the present formation of the Board

of Directors.

c) Astatement of the following:
1. The total paid remunerations of Directors for the financial year 2023.
| The total paid remunerations of Directors for the financial year ending on 31

| December 2023 amounted AED 750,000 (Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dirhams).

2. The total proposed remunerations of Directors for year 2024, which will be
presented in the annual general assembly for the certification thereof.

In accordance with the Corporate Governance Regulation for Insurance Companies issued by
the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates, which requires the conclusion of fixed
fee/compensation contracts with members of the Board of Directors . the company, after the
approval of the General Assembly of the company in its meeting held on 29/4/2024, concluded
fixed fee contracts for each member of the Board of Directors totaling AED 750,000 for all

| members of the Board of Directors (not including allowances for artending Board committee

meetings). These fees are an alternative to the remuneration of members of the Board of

Direcrors.
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3. Statement of the details of allowances for attending the sessions of the

committees formed out of the Board, which have been received by the

Directors for the financial year 2024, according to the following table:
Allowances for artending sessions of committees of the
Board of Directors
No. Name Committee Name Allowance Value | Meeting
for each | number
meeting
1i 1 Ms, Arwa Al Owais Audit Committee— | 10,000 AED 4
| Chairman
2 Mr. Ali Al Midfa Audit Committee- | 5,000 AED 4
Member
3 Mr. Ahmed Mansour Audit Committee- | 5,000 AED 4
Member
| 4 Ahmed Obaid Yousuf | Nominations & Bonus 5,000 AED ! 1
| Al Qaseer BuAlj Committee - Chairman '
5 Ms. Arwa Al Owais MNominations & Bonus | 5,000 AED 1
Committee - Member
| 6 Mr. Obaid Mohammed | Nominations & Bonus | 5,000 AED 1
Obaid Al-Zaabi Committee- Member

4. The details of the extra fees, salaries, or allowances received by a director,
other than the allowances for artending committees, and the reasons thereof.

MNone.
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d) The number of Board of Directors’ meetings that were held during the financial
year 2024 with stating the holding dates thereof, and the number of personal

attendances of all Directors, with stating the Directors attending by proxy .

Board of Directors’ me etings from 1/1/2024 until 31/12/2024

No | Meeting Date | Number of Attendees | Number of Attendees | The Names of

by Proxy Absent Member

: 1 [19/2/2024 |5 0 - Mr.  Ahmed
| Mohamed Al-Midfa -
Ahmed Obaid

Yousuf Al Qaseer

BuAli
2 | 19/3/2024 7 0
3 |29/4/2024 7 0 0
4 | 30/9/2024 7 0
5 |25/11/2024 7 0 0
6 | 24/12/2024 7 0 0

| e) The number of Board of Directors’ resolutions that were passed by circulation
during the financial year 2024, with stating the passing dates thereof.

|

None.

f) A statement of the tasks and competencies of the Board of Directors as

undertaken by a director or a member of the Executive Management in year 2024
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based on a delegation by the Board, with stating the duration and authority of the

delegarion, as per the following table:

el .

SN Name of Delegated Delegation Authority Delegation Duration

Person

1 Mr. Ahmed Mohamed | To sign any transaction of the company. | Valid until the end of
Hamad Al Midfa the current term of the
| Board of Directors or
when the powers are

modified by the Board

i of Directors

I 2 Mr. Ahmed Salem To sign any transaction of the company. | Valid until the end of

l Abdullah Salem Al- the current term of the
' Hosani Board of Directors or

when the powers are
modified by the Board

of Directors

g) A statement of the details of related party (stakeholder) transactions in year
2024, provided that this shall include the following:

Related Party Transactions AED

Receivable 7.511,424

| Payables 25,296
Total Written Insurance Premium 3,687,892

Paid Claims 664,372

Outstanding Claims 7,298,431

l Paid Rents 779,625
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* Evaluation of the Board of Directors, its Committees, and Executive Management:

= The Nominations and Remuneration Committee met on 10/3/2025 and evaluated the
performance of the Board, its committees, and the Executive Management for 2024 according to

the approved Evaluation forms in the Company .

h) The complete organizational structure of the company.

ELy pamt

SHARIAH INSURANCE L3 puolill 6.5l

| - [ ] .
_ _ oo e —— i]
| [ | = Ji

- | v (=]
| el = [! 7111
| B = | !

Dato:  29/272024 warshon: 10

i) A detailed starement of the first line and second line Senior Executive employees

as mentioned in the organizational structure of the Company (as per 3-h) and
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| their jobs and dates of appointment, with stating the total salaries and

i remunerations paid to them, as per the following table:
SN Job Title Date of Total Salaries & Total Bonuses Any Other Cash =
Appointment | Allowances Paid (Bonus) Paid in Bonuses or In-Kind for
in 2024 (AED) 2024 for the 2024 or that will
Performance of Become Due in the
. 2023 Future
| 1 | General Manager | 31/3/2020 580,000 70,000 None
]! 2 Internal Audit 19/12/2024 71,510 - None
Manager
(raking into
consideration the
changes in the
' Department).
3 | Compliance 29/11/2019 166,000 6,000 None
Officer
-4 Information 1/11/2015 129,000 4,038 None
Systems Manager
l 5 Financial 11/8/2022 219,000 6,375 Nane
Department
Manager
6 Business 13/03/2024 70,554 - None
Development
Manager
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7 | Legal Department | 16/11/2022 161,000 3.250 Mone

Ma nager

8 Vehicle 27/7/1985 204,000 6,800 MNone
{}epa rrment

Ma nager

10 | General Insurance | 23/06/2016 250,000 8,500 None

Manager

4- The External Auditor:

a. To give an overview of the Company’s Auditor to the shareholders:
Grant Thornton Company is one of the pioneering companies in the field of auditing, as
itis ranking between the 5" and the 6" on the level of auditing companies in the world,
with 800 offices existing in more than 130 throughout the world and more than 50,000
employees. Grant Thornton has three offices in the UAE, particularly, in Abu Dhabi,
Dubai, and Sharjah, having around 450 employees who are allocated to several
activities, including auditing, taxation, and various financial consultancies.

b. A statement of fees and costs of auditing or the services that were provided by the

External Auditor, as per the following rable:

The Name of the Auditing Firm / Grant Thornton The Name of the Audit Partner/ Osama Al-Bakri

The number of years of service as an external auditor Six years
of the company
The number of years of the managing auditor’s 3 years

service in auditing the accounts of the company
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Total auditing fees for year 2023 (AED) 360,000 AED

The dezails and nature of the other services provided MNone
by the company's auditor (if any). In case there are

no other services, this shall be expressly mentioned.

The fees and costs (AED) of the special services, None
other than auditing the financial statements of 2023:

review the balance sheet.

The details and nature of the other provided services There are no other services
(if any). In case there are no other services, this shall

be expressly mentioned.

A statement of the other services performed by the There are no other services
external auditor, other than the company's auditor,
in 2024 (if any). In case there are no services

provided by another external audiror, this shall be

expressly mentioned.

c. Astatement of the reservations expressed by the company's auditor in the interim
and annual financial statements of year 2024. In case there are no reservations,
this shall be expressly mentioned.

There are no reservations that have been included by the external auditor in the interim

or annual financial statements of year 2024.
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5- The Audit Committee

a. Adeclaration by the chairman of the audit committee of his/her responsibility for
the committee’s system in the company and for his/her review of the operation
mechanism thereof and ensuring the effectiveness thereof.

Mrs. Arwa Al-Owais, the chairman of the Audit Commitee, declares her responsibility
for the committee’s system in the company and for her review of the operation

mechanism thereof and ensuring the effectiveness thereof.

| b. The names of the members of the audit committee and a statement of the
competencies thereof and the tasks assigned thereto.

The names of the members of the audit committee from 1/1/2024 untl 9/3/2024

SN | Name Status

1 Mrs. Arwa Al-Owais Committee’s Chairman
| 2 Mr. Ali Salim Al Midfa Member
i 3 Mr. Ahmed Mohammed Mansour ' Member out of BOD

The competencies and rasks assigned thereto:

® To review the activities, resources, and organizational structure of the internal control
depantment, and to review the operational framework of the internal control
department, and to review and approve the annual audit plan.
® To consider the process for the selection and appoiniment of the director of the internal
control and internal audit department.
| ® To review the reports submitted to the committee by the director of the internal control

department, and the replies received from the company to the same, and to ensure that
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the findings and recommendations given by the internal auditor and the suggestions
and replies given by the executive management have been received and discussed and
that the necessary actions have been taken regarding the same, and to discuss with the
director of the internal control department whether are there any difficulties that are
facing him in performing the audit tasks, such as the restrictions imposed on his scope
of work, or the difficulty in getting the necessary information.

To ensure that the internal audit department has the adequate number of staff, besides
having the appropriate power and position within the company.

To meet with the director of the internal audit department at least once annually, to
ensure that there are no pending marters,

To prepare the Board of Directors’ reports regarding all the marters that are being

considered by the committee.

The number of meetings held by the audit committee in year 2024 and the dates
thereof for the discussion of the matters related to the financial statements and
any other matters, and to state the number of the personal artendances of
members in the held meetings.

The Meetings of the Audit Committee
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1- The meetings of the Audit Committee from 1/1/2024 until 31/12/2024:

Members Meeting No. 1| Meeting No. 2 | Meeting No.3 | Meeting No.4
dated dated dated dated
5-3-2024 13/5/2024 31/7/2024 11/11/2024
Mrs. Arwa Al- Present Present Present Present
| Dwais
Mr. Ali Al Present Present Present Present
Midfa
{ Mr. Ahmed Present Present Present Present
I Mohammed
: Mansour
|

Annual Audit Committee Report for 2024

Based on the periodic meetings held by the Audit Committee during the year 2024, the Audit

Committee emphasized in those meetings the important role of the Audit Committee, especially
| the Internal Audit Department in the company, through the exercise of the tasks and duties of
internal audit. Therefore, the Audit Committee clarified the following in the summary of the
2024 report:
1. During 2024, the Audit Committee reviewed vital financial statement issues, including
assessing the company's liquidity position and reviewing the situation of the past debs for
more than five years.

2. The Audit Committee reviews and evaluates the external auditor's performance annually,
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and makes the recommendations to the Board of Directors.
1 3- The committee relies on the following assessment tools:
A - Auditor independence: By submitting a quarterly declaration to the Audit Committee and
the Board of Directors, he affirms his full independence and also verifies that he does not
. provide any other services to the company that might conflict with his independence as an
auditor.
B - Professional competence.
C — the performance in Auditing in other companies operating in the same field.
3 - The company, through the Audit Committee, shall annually reappoint, dismiss, or appoint
the external auditor, or another auditor, after submitting the necessary recommendations to the
Board of Directors and duly approving them at the General Assembly.
4-The Audit Committee meets with the internal auditor on a quarterly basis, reviews his work,
evaluates his performance, and also creates and provides an appropriate environment for him
to perform his duties, ensuring that his decisions are impartial and not influenced by any
internal or external factors, and has the right to access any of the members and the head of the
committee or the board if necessary.

5 -The Audit Committee continuously follows up on the points mentioned in the internal audit
| report, especially the high and medium risks (if any), and verifies their causes if any information
becomes clear to it, and reviews the executive management's responses to these reports.

However, to date, there is nothing in the company that indicates high or medium risks.
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6 - The company has directly established an internal audit charter and a risk management

policy based on monitoring the company's risks and correcting any deficiencies, if any.

A

Reviewing these policies and procedures remains an important task that must be followed up
periodically by the relevant departments and under the supervision of the Audit Commirtee.
The commitree also discusses the internal control system with the executive management to
ensure that the latter fulfills its duties towards developing an effective internal control system.
8 - The Audit Committee reviews all contracts and agreements that may be concluded with the
company by related parties and determines the extent of their impact on the company and their

feasibility.

The Audit Committee emphasizes on the importance of its oversight rolein monitoring the

company'’s activities.

6- The Nominations & Remuneration Committee:

a. A declaration by the chairman of the nominations & remunerations committee of
his/her responsibility for the committee’s system in the company and for his/her
review of rhe operation mechanism thereof and ensuring the effectiveness

thereof.

Mr. Ahmed Obaid Yousuf Al Qaseer BuAli , the Chairman of the Nominations &
' Remuneration Committee, declares his responsibility for the committee’s system in the
Company and for his review of the operation mechanism thereof and ensuring the

effectiveness thereof.
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b. The names of the members of the Nominations & Bonus Committee, and a
statement of the competencies thereof and the tasks assigned thereto.

1- The names of the members of the Nominations & Bonus Committee from 1/1/2024

until 31/12/2024:
SN | Name Status
1 | Mr. Ahmed Obaid Yousuf Al Qaseer BuAli Committee’s Chairman
2 | Mr. Obaid Al-Zaabi Member
3 | Ms. Arwa Al Owais Member

The competencies thereof and the tasks assigned thereto:

® Toensure the ongoing independence of independent members.

® To regulate and follow-up the procedures of nomination for Directorship in consistency
with the laws and regulations in force and the provisions of this resolution.

® To prepare the policy for granting bonuses, benefits, and incentives to the company’s
Directors and workers, and to review the same on an annual basis. The committee shall
ensure that the bonuses and benefits granted to the senior executive management of
the company are reasonable and consistent with the performance of the company.

® Toensure the ongoing independence of independent members.

® To identify the company's needs of competent personnel on the level of the senior
executive management and the employees and the criteria for their selection.

® To prepare the human resources & training policy of the company and to monitor the

| implementation thereof, and to review the same on an annual basis.

® Tofollow-up and oversee the dealings of the insiders.
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c. A statement of the number of meetings held by the Committee in year 2024 and
the holding dates thereof, with stating the number of personal artendances of all

the committee’s members.

The Nominations & Remunerations Committee held (1) meeting in year 2024 with the

presence of all the members thereof (3) .

1- The meetings of the Nominations & Remunerations Committee from 1/1/2024 until

31;" 12/2024:
Members Meeting No 1 dated 26/6/2024
Mr. Ahmed Obaid Yousuf Al Qaseer BuAli Present
Mr. Obaid Al-Zaabi Present
Ms. Arwa Al Owais Present

7- The Commirttee for the Follow-up & Supervision of Insider Dealings:

Such committee has not been formed, as there has been no sale or purchase movement

of the Securities of the Company by insiders for several prior years.

| 8- Any Other Committee(s) Approved by the Board of Directors:

MNone.

| 9- The Internal Control System:

| a. A declaration by the Board of its responsibility for the internal control system of the
company and its review of the operational mechanism thereof and ensuring the

effectiveness thereof.
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The Board declares its responsibility for the internal control system of the company and

its review of the operational mechanism thereof and ensuring the effectiveness thereof.

b. The name of the Department’s Manager and his qualifications and the date of his
appointment:

® Maitha Abdalla Ahmed Qassim Ahmed- Bachelor in Finance- appointed on
19/12/2024.

® Alya Al Swuaidi — Bachelor of economic - appointed on 21/2/2024 ll 16/7/2024.

® Amna Mohamed - Bachelor's Degree in Accounting appointed on 4/9/2023 ill

10/2/2024.

¢. The name of the compliance officer and his qualifications and the date of his
appointment:
Abdul-Salam Al-Hammadi — Bachelor's Degree in Law & Economics.
Appointed on: 06 November 2019 6ll 5/8/2024 .
Madhu Mishra — Bachelor in Law — appointed on : 29/11/2024.

d. The manner of the internal control department’s handling of any major problems
in the company or those that have been disclosed om the annual accounts and
reports (in case there are no major problems, it shall be stated that the company
did not face any problems).

The internal control department submits the reports thereof to the audit committee and
it reports to such committee, a thing which enables it to operate independently and
objectively, and which also enables it to interact with the CEO and the executive

management team in an outstanding manner that ensures the facile identification of
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performance improvement and business development ininatives. In addition to the
.i availability of the guarantees that ensure the artainment of the objectives of the
company in an effective manner and that ensure a high level of independence in the
internal control department’s implementation of the activities and tasks thereof, the
internal audit manager has a direct communication with the Directors and is
| functionally accountable before the audit comminee and is administratively
accountable before the CEO.
When the company faces some marters that are disclosed in the annual financial
statements, or any other means of disclosure, the role of the internal control department
in this regard is as follows:
® To enlist such matters and issues within the planning stages of audit operations.
| ® To provide advice and consultancy services (as necessary) to contribute to stating such
matters and developments and to finding solutions.
- ® Toensure the regular follow-up of the steps and actions taken for the resolution of such
' matters and issues.
® To forward periodic reports to the Board of Directors and the audit commitee as in

relation to the status of such matters and issues.

e. The number of reports issued by the internal control department to the
company’s Board of Directors:
The internal control department performs the jobs and tasks assigned thereto under the
direct supervision of the audit committee inan
effective and constructive manner, a thing which contributes to the creation of an ideal

work environment of rtransparency, effectiveness, compliance, discipline, and
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competency in performance and productivity. The internal control department prepares
the reports thereof according to the best practices applicable in this regard and in
consistency with the regulations and laws in force. The department performs the tasks
thereof integrally and neutrally with no interventions or influences on the quality and
competency of the reports thereof, and it forwards the reports thereof to the audit
committee on a regular basis (and whenever needed) for the presentation and
discussion thereof and to forward a recommendation regarding the same to the Board

of Directors for taking the appropriate decisions regarding the same.

I Three reports have been issued to the audit committee and the Board of Directors in
| year 2023, including all the auditable departments of the company, and the necessary

decisions regarding the same have been issued.

10- The Details of the Violations Committed in Year 2024 and a Statement of the

Reasons Thereof, the Resolution Manner Thereof, and How to Avoid Them in the

Future:
Mone

11- A Statement of the Cash & In-Kind Contributions Given by the Company in Year

| 2024 for the Development of the Local Community and the Preservation of the

i Environment (in case there are no contributions, it shall be stated thar the

company has given no contributions):

None.
|
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12- General Informarion:

a. A statement of the stock price of the company in the market (closing price,

highest price, lowest price) at the end of every month of the financial year 2024.

Year Month Closing Price Highest Price Lowest Price
2024 January 15 1.95 0.96
2024 Fehrum)! 1.5 1.95 0.96
2024 March 1.5 1.95 0.96
2024 April 1.5 1.6 0.96
2024 May 1.49 1.5 0.96
2024 June 1.364 15 0.96
2024 July 1.364 1.5 0.96
2024 August 1.364 1.5 0.96
| 2024 September 15 ' 1.5 15
| 2024 October 15 15 0.96
2024 November 135 1.35 1.35
2024 December 1.35 135 1.35

b. A starement of the comparative performance of the company’s stock with the

public market index and the index of the sector to which the company belongs in

year 2024.
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Month — Year The Closing Price of Sharjah The Closing of the Public
Insurance Company Market Index

— 2024 1.35 9,330.920

02 - 2024 1.72 9,118.520

| 03 — 2024 15 0,087.53
| 042024 15 8,836.520
052024 - 1.364 8,602.430

06— 2024 1.364 8,761.380

| 07 - 2024 1.65 9,162.790
| 08-2024 | 1.364 9,222,470
| 09— 2024 1.5 9,341.150
10—-2024 1.5 9,262.650

11— 2024 1.5 9,179.290

12-2024 1.5 9,376.970

¢. A statement of the distribution of the equity of shareholders as on 31/12/2024
(individuals, companies, governments), classified as follows: Local, Gulf, Arab,

and Foreign.

SN Shareholder Percentage of Owned Shares
Classification
B Individuals Companies | Government Total
Local 82% 18% g 100%
Arab - - - -
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Foreign 0.02% - . 0.02%

Total 82% 18% - 100%

——

d. A statement of the shareholders who own 5% or more of the company’s capital as

' on 31/12/2024, as per the following table:

SN Name Number of Owned Percentage of Owned
Shares Shares out of the Capital
1 | Salem Abdullah Salem Al-Hosani 44,681,818 shares 30%
! 2 Al Salem Company Limited 26,809,550 shares 18 %
| 3 Mohammad Bin Ahmad Bin 7,628,395 shares 5,085 %
Saeed Al-Qassimi
4 Ahmed Essa Ahmed Al-Naeem 7,802,000 shares 5.1%

e. A statement of the distribution manner of shareholders according to the size of

their equity as on 31/12/2024 , as per the following table:

i SN | Ownership of Shares Number of Number of Percentage of Owned
i Shareholders | Owned Shares Shares out of the
Capital
1 Less than 50,000 97 778,364 1%
2 | From 50,000 to less than 57 12,124,801 8 %
| 500,000
| 3 From 500,000 to less 17 28,415,955 18,943%
E than 5,000,000
! & More than 5,000,000 8 108,680,653 72%
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f. A statement of the actions that have been taken regarding the regulations of
investor relations, with the statement of the following:
= The name of the investment relations officer:

- Contact details of investor relations (e-mail — phone — mobile — fax)

The name of the investor relations officer :

MName of Investor Relations Officer Mr. Mustafa Mohammed Ali Abu-Ali
| E-mail Legal@shjins.ae
‘ Phone 06-5695657

Mobile 050-4286261

Fax 06-5695667

' The link of the investor relations webpage on the company’s website:

https://www.shjins.com/investor-relation

g. A statement of the special resolutions that were presented in the General
Assembly convened in 2024 and the actions taken regarding the same.

i MNone

h. The name and date of appointment of the rapporteur of the meetings of the Board

i of Directors:

Mrs. Zeina Youssef — 22 April 2019,

Page 33 of 35
Heod Office PO Box 792, Sharjah, UAE  Tel: |0&) 5195448 Fou [06) 5195447 () 2SI G (U 0T Bl BT e ¢ g L
Db Bronch PO, Bow 7258, Dubai, UAE Tel: (04) 3979794 Fax: [04] 3979704 (R PUAV-E: S PO T e | i e

. sicomemintes.net.os . www.shjins.com . asharjohing . Sharjohinsurancecompany . Sharioh Insumnce Compony



fie.

1

SHARJAH INSURANCE
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i- A detailed statement of the material events and the significant disclosures
encountered by the company in year 2024.

MNone.

j- Astatement of the deals closed by the company with related parties in year 2024,

equaling 5% or more of the company’s capital.

There are no deals that are equal to 5% or more of the company's capital.

| k. A statement of the percentage of Emiratization in the Company by the end of

years 2022, 2023,2024.
Year Percentage of Emiratization
_! 2024 | 2157 %
2023 ! 21.56%
2022 14%

I Astarement of the innovative initiatives and projects undertaken by the company

or that are under development in year 2023.

| MNone.

|
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Chairman of the Board of Head of the Head of the Head of the

Directors Signature Audit Nomination And Internal Control
Committee Remuneration Department
! Signature Committee Signature
!
I Date..... /..M Dare .../ Date..... ..M Date ..../...[
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